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RAKESH KASHYAP ANDHRA PRAGATHI GRAMEENA BANK
CHAIRMAN HEAD OFFICE, MARIYAPURAM,

YSR KADAPA DIST.- 516 003
ANDHRA PRADESH.
Ph: 08562-259214, 08562-244834
FAX: 08562 244169, 08562 259017
E-mail: apgbcst@apgb.in

The Secretary,
Government of India,
Ministry of Finance,
Department of Financial Services
NEW DELHI

Dear Sir,

In accordance with the provisions of Section 20 of the Regional Rural Banks Act 1976, I forward herewith the
following documents:

a) Directors' Report on the working of Andhra Pragathi Grameena Bank and its activities during the accounting
year ended 31st March, 2023.

b) A copy of Auditor's Report in relation to the Bank's accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

c) A copy of the Bank's Audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

Yours faithfully,
KADAPA,
Date: 25.04.2023.

(RAKESH KASHYAP)
CHAIRMAN

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

ANDHRA PRAGATHI GRAMEENA BANK
(Sponsored by Canara Bank)
HEAD OFFICE: KADAPA - 516003

ANDHRA PRADESH
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS 2022-2023

Total Business crossed a level of
Rs.41655.37 Crore registering a quantum
growth of Rs.2398.42 Crore over the previ-
ous year with a growth rate of 6.11%.

The operating Profit before provisions and
taxes touched a level of Rs. 1072.23 Crore.
The Net Profit, after Tax and Provisions,
touched a level of Rs.595.15 Crore.

The Bank's Net Interest Margin (NIM) stood
at 4.63%, Return on Assets (ROA) at 2.04%
and Cost to Income Ratio (CIR) at 38.04%.

Gross Non-performing  Assets pegged at
Rs.295.26 Crore despite severe drought and
adverse climatic conditions. Gross NPA is
at 1.35% while the Net NPAs stood at Nil
with 100% provision on NPA.

Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at 23.90%
against statutory requirement of 9%.

The Bank is placed on a strong platform with
a Total Net worth of Rs.3789.26 Crore.

The Deposits touched Rs.19791.77 Crore
with a growth rate of 3.47%, CASA crossed
Rs.7334.64 Crore, constituting 37.06% of
Total Deposits with improvement of 276 bps
during FY 2022-23.

The Total Advances crossed a level of
Rs.21863.60 Crore as on 31.03.2023,
showing a quantum growth of Rs.1734.18
Crore, over the previous year with a growth
rate of 8.62 %

Priority Sector advances reached a level
of Rs.19923 Crore, constituting 91.12% of

Total Advances as against Agriculture Ad-
vances touched a level of Rs.16899 Crore
constituting 77.29% of total advances.

Total No-frills accounts have gone up to
1835884 from the last year level of 1768587,
recording growth of 3.80%.

The SHG loan amount outstanding touched
a level of Rs.5021.96 Crores spread over
1,29,192 SHG loan accounts.

The KCC portfolio amount outstanding
reached a level of Rs. 8551.45 cr with 702644
KCC loan accounts.

Per Branch Business and Per-Employee
productivity improved to Rs.75.46 Crore and
Rs.15.53 Crore respectively.

Total deposit accounts stood at 67.64 lakhs
and advance accounts at 16.10 lakhs

Total No. of Branches stood at 552 com-
prising of 326 Rural, 144 Semi-Urban and
82 Urban Branches.

Bank is having 995 BC locations and the
total transactions happened at BC locations
is 87.97 lakh with a transaction value of
Rs. 5390.92 Crore during the Financial Year
2022-23.

Staff strength stood at 2682, comprising
of 1945 Officers, 637 Office Assistants and
100 Office Attendants.

Bank has installed 98 ATMs. Out of which 95
are on-site and 3 are Mobile Demo Vans.

Bank is having 139 NND agents covering all
ten districts with an outstanding collecting
amount of 106.73 Crore.
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Awards received by the Bank during the FY-
2022-23

Received prestigious "Outstanding Perfor-
mance in SHG Linkage for FY 2020-21"
from MoRD, GoI.

Received ASSOCHAM awards under
"Lending and Non- Lending Categories
of Small Banks" for FY 2021-22.

Received awards of appreciation under
"Technology Adoption & Refinance Busi-
ness" for FY 2021-22 from NABARD.

Bank has received award in "Wondrous
Warriors of Winning Wednesday" Cam-
paign during MAY- 2022.

Bank has received award in "Exemplary
Award of Excellence" during Beat the Best
& Be the Best Campaign during May & June-
2022.

Bank received award in "Warriors of Win-
ning Wednesday" Campaign during June
2022.

Bank has received certificate in "Weekly
Warriors of Winning Wednesday" Cam-
paign during August 2022.

Bank has received "Certificate of Excel-
lence" from SLBC of AP during July-2022.

Bank received award in "Wondrous War-
riors of Winning Wednesday" Campaign
during September 2022.

Received award in "Exemplary Financial
Freedom Fighter" during Old Age Finan-
cial Freedom Fighters Campaign during
August & September-2022.

Bank has been qualified for "Grand APY
Meet" - Dine with Hon'ble Chairman,
PFRDA in October 2022 by reaching a tar-
get of 75AAPB as on 30.09.2022.

Bank received award in APY Citizens
Choice campaign conducted by SLBC dur-
ing H1 of F.Y 2022-23.

Bank has been nominated for "Wondrous
Warriors of Winning Wednesday" Cam-
paign during December 2022.

Bank has been nominated for "Exemplary
Award of Par Excellence" during Rise
Above the Rest Campaign during Novem-
ber & December-2022.

Bank has been nominated for "Award of Ex-
cellence" during LEADERSHIP PINNACLE
Campaign during January & February-2023.

Bank has been nominated for "Warriors of
Winning Wednesday" Campaign during
February 2023.

Bank has been nominated for "ANNUAL APY
EXEMPLARY AWARD OF PAR EXCEL-
LENCE" during F.Y.2022-23 for achieving
target of more than 150%.
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Sl.No Audit Firm Name Place

1 M N RAO & ASSOCIATES VIJAYAWADA

2 POLINENI ASSOCIATES GUNTUR

3 T SATYANARAYANA & CO MARKAPUR

4 C P J & ASSOCIATES VIZIANAGARAM

5 R RAMESH BABU & CO TIRUPATI

6 SRIVALLI & RAO VISAKHAPATNAM

7 K VENKATA REDDY & ASSOCIATES VISAKHAPATNAM

8 B SARATH BABU & CO NELLORE

9 SRIRAMA & ASSOCIATES VISAKHAPATNAM

10 RAO & REDDY HYDERABAD

11 CHENNURU & CO VISAKHAPATNAM

12 SANKAR KUMAR ASSOCIATES GUNTUR

13 SUREY SRINIVAS & CO KAKINADA

14 N V SURESH & ASSOCIATES PRODDATUR

15 C PARDHA SARADHI & CO TENALI

16 D PENCHALA REDDY & CO NELLORE

17 RAJAGOPAL NAIDU & CO TIRUPATI

18 K R SINGH & ASSOCIATES KURNOOL

19 P S RANDER & CO NIZAMABAD

20 M V R & ASSOCIATES VIJAYAWADA

21 LAKSHMI PRASANNA & CO NELLORE

22 SIMHACHALAM & ASSOCIATES VISAKHAPATNAM

23 VENKATA MADHURI & CO NELLORE

24 KALICHETI & ASSOCIATES CHITTOOR

25 T V S R KRISHNA PRASAD & CO BHIMAVARAM

26 CHOWDAVARAPU & CO KHAMMAM

STATUTORY CENTRAL AUDITORS
M/s. CHOWDARY & RAO

HYDERABAD
STATUTORY BRANCH AUDITORS
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27 D SRINIVASA RAO & CO GUNTUR

28 CHALAPATHI REDDY & CO NALGONDA

29 MANCHU KONDA SRINIVASA RAO & CO GUNTUR

30 GURUNADHA RAO & CO SRIKAKULAM

31 RAGHU KUMAR & ASSOCIATES KAKINADA

32 JAGAN MOHAN & ASSOCIATES ONGOLE

33 M VENKATESWARULU & CO TIRUPATI

34 PANDU RANGA MURTY & ASSOCIATES KAKINADA

35 G S NAIDU & ASSOCIATES VIZIANAGARAM

36 KODURI JITENDRA BABU & CO TENALI

37 P V SATEESH & ASSOCIATES PALASA

38 K K P CHAMARTHI & CO KAKINADA

39 T SAHAJANANDA REDDY & CO NELLORE

40 BALASAI & ASSOCIATES KOTHAPETA

41 R SUBBARAYUDU & ASSOCIATES CHIRALA

42 SANJAY KUMAR SONI & CO TANDUR

43 JAGADEESH KRISHNA & CO TIRUPATI

44 LEELA KRISHNAMURTHY & ASSOCIATES GUNTUR

45 LAXMINARAYANA & MADHU VISAKHAPATNAM

46 BRAHMANANDA REDDY & ASSOCIATES KAKINADA

47 MENTE & ASSOCIATES VISAKHAPATNAM

48 K K M K & ASSOCIATES GUNTUR

49 SURESH & BABU VIJAYAWADA

50 SURYANARAYANA MURTHY & CO VIJAYAWADA

51 DURGA RAO & CO VIJAYAWADA

52 KUNDA & ASSOCIATES VIJAYAWADA

53 POLA & CO VIJAYAWADA

54 GUTTIKONDA & CO VIJAYAWADA

Sl.No Audit Firm Name Place
STATUTORY BRANCH AUDITORS
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Bank have pleasure
in presenting the Bank's 17thAnnual Report, along
with the Audited Balance Sheet, as on 31st March
2023 and the Profit and Loss account statement
for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2023.

INTRODUCTION

Andhra PragathiGrameena Bank, sponsored by
Canara Bank, in the state of Andhra Pradesh, came
into existence on 01.06.2006 after amalgamation
of 3 RRBs namely Rayalaseema Grameena Bank,
Sree Anantha Grameena Bank and Pinakini
Grameena Bank, into a single entity by a Notifica-
tion of Government of India dated 01.06.2006. The
area of operation of the Bank consists of 10 dis-
tricts viz., Ananthapuramu, Annamaiah, Bapatla,

Y.S.R.Kadapa, Kurnool, Nandyal,
S.P.S.R.Nellore, Prakasam, Sri Sathya Sai and
Tirupati with a distinct socio-cultural heritage. The
economy of the area of operation of the Bank is
primarily agrarian in nature as majority of its popu-
lation depends on agriculture. Agriculture being the
main activity, the production depends upon sea-
sonal distribution of the rainfall.

SHARE HOLDERS AND SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid up Capital of the Bank continues to be
Rs.4234.26 Lakh, contributed by the Government
of India, Sponsor Bank (Canara Bank) and the
Government of Andhra Pradesh in the ratio of
50:35:15 respectively.

The present position of share holding is as follows:

                              (Rs. in lakh)

BRANCH NETWORK

Bank has categorized the Branches as on 31.03.2023 based on population of 2011 Census. The network of
branches after categorization is furnished in the following table:

                       Contributors Paid up Capital

Central Government 2117.13

Sponsor Bank(Canara Bank) 1481.99

Government of Andhra Pradesh 635.14

Total 4234.26

District &
Category ATMsRural Semi-Urban Urban Total

Regional
Office

Ananthapuramu 39 11 15 65 1 9

Sri Sathya Sai 38 15 5 58 1 17

YSR Kadapa 44 21 16 81 1 17

Annamaiah 20 11 0 31 1 7


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DEPOSITS

Total Deposits of the Bank reached a level of
Rs.19792 Crore as on 31st March 2023 in com-
parison to the level of Rs.19128 Crore of deposits
as on 31st March 2022. The net increase in de-
posits was to the tune of Rs.664 Crore registering
a growth rate of 3.47%.  The share of demand de-
posits stood at 37.06% of total deposits. Per branch

deposits increased from Rs. 3465.22 lakh to
Rs.3485.50 lakh. Deposits per employee rose to
Rs.737.95 lakh as on March 2023, as against
Rs. 704.51 lakh as on March 2022.

The comparative position of deposits as at
31.03.2023 vis-à-vis the previous year ended March
2022 is as below:

Nandyal 35 17 9 61 1 11

Kurnool 32 14 15 61 1 16

Prakasam 49 16 7 72 1 9

Bapatla 13 11 0 24 0 3

Nellore 45 18 15 78 1 5

Tirupathi 11 10 0 21 0 4

Total 326 144 82 552 8 98
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The position of category-wise branch deposits, as at 31.03.2023 is given below:
(Rs. in Lakh)

1 Demand Deposits 6560.97 7334.64 11.79% 37.06%

2 Term Deposits 12566.56 12457.13 -0.87% 62.94%

3 Total Deposits (1+2) 19127.53 19791.77 3.47% 100%

Sl.
No.

Category of Deposits
March
2022

(Amount)

March
2023

(Amount)

% increase
over March

2022

%  share to total
deposits

as on 31.03.2023

(Rs. in Crores)

Category of Branches No. of branches Deposits %
(2022-23)

Rural 326 720146.09 36.39%

Semi-Urban 144 615990.21 31.12%

Urban 82 643040.62 32.49%

Total 552 1979176.92 100.00%

2 5 0 0 0 0 0

2 0 0 0 0 0 0

1 5 0 0 0 0 0

1 0 0 0 0 0 0

5 0 0 0 0 0

0

Amt. in Lakh

DEMAND DEP TERM DEP TOTAL DEP

19791771912753

12457131256656

733464
656097
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        District Branches Deposits Advances Total Business

FINANCIAL INCLUSION

IMPLEMENTATION OF SOCIAL SECURITY SCHEMES

The performance of the Bank under PMJJBY Enrolments:

17th Formation Day Celebrations at Head Office

Nellore 78 254650.58 260722.65 515373.23

Prakasam 72 230452.43 278612.01 509064.44

Sri Satya Sai 58 183648.54 294509.44 478157.98

Tirupati 21 55426.22 67129.83 122556.05

Total 552 1977160.26 2186360.04 4163520.30

                     Head Office 2016.66 2016.66

                  Bank as a Whole 1979176.92 4165536.96

Blood Donataion Camp
at Mariapuram Branch on eve of Formation Day

No. of Enrolments under PMJJBY as on 01.06.2022 503452

No. of fresh enrolments under PMJJBY during F.Y. 2022-23 139693

Total No. of PMJJBY Enrolments as on 31.03.2023 643145

No. of PMJJBY Death Claims received 3731

No. of PMJJBY Death Claims settled 3007

No. of PMJJBY Death Claims repudiated 279

No. of PMJJBY Death Claims pending with LIC 445

Amount settled (Rs.in lakhs) 6014
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Progress in Opening of accounts under PMJDY up to 31.03.2021

Name of
District

No. of Accounts Opened

Female Male    Female    Male

Total
Accounts
Opened

Outstand-
ing

Balance
(Rs. in
Lakh)

No. of
A/c's
with
Zero

Balance

No. of
RuPay
Debit
cards
issued

No. of
A/c's

seeded
with

Aadhaar

Ananthapuramu 51103 36634 29067 15546 132350 5260.92 7317 76371 132245

Annamaiah 21729 13709 11518 6053 53009 2424.49 2360 28280 52906

Bapatla 10160 6332 12519 5217 34228 1487.91 1296 20778 34212

YSR Kadapa 41667 28046 39747 19979 129439 5007.73 6274 72264 129342

Kurnool 63133 41775 46550 24551 176009 5708.41 3622 110335 175838
Nandyal 35614 22683 26252 14208 98757 3869.17 3417 58164 98652

SPSR Nellore 33544 29686 25361 15376 103967 3032.15 4068 58618 103864

Prakasam 36805 23780 34288 15077 109950 4666.33 3841 64419 109851
Sri Satya Sai 44592 29721 26232 13811 114356 5288.19 2649 67914 114262

Tirupati 13173 11563 10617 6858 42211 1032.20 1740 24727 42197

Total 351520 243929 262151 136676 994276 37777.50 36584 581870 993369

The performance of the Bank under PMSBY Enrolments:

Performance during F.Y. 2022-23

No. of Target (@ 80 per branch) Achievement during Avg. APY enrollments
Branches for F.Y. 2022-23 F.Y. 2022-23 per branch

552 44160 74580 135.10

The performance of the Bank under APY Enrolments

No. of Enrolments under PMSBY as on 01.06.2022 1305329
No. of fresh enrolments under PMSBY during F.Y. 2022-23 212417

Total No. of PMSBY Enrolments as on 31.03.2023 1517746
No. of PMSBY Death Claims received 864
No. of PMSBY Death Claims settled 437
No. of PMSBY Death Claims repudiated 194
No. of PMSBY Death Claims pending with UII 233
Amount settled (Rs. in lakhs) 867

The performance of the Bank under APY Enrolments (Since inception of the scheme)
Enrollments mobilized under APY during

8126 15788 14477 30370 31031 35168 41430 74580 250970

F.Y.
2015-16

F.Y.
2016-17

F.Y.
2017-18

F.Y.
2018-19

F.Y.
2019-20

F.Y.
2020-21

F.Y.
2021-22

F.Y.
2022-2023 TOTAL

Progress in Opening of accounts under PMJDY up to 31.03.2023

Rural Urban
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Performance of Business Correspondents (BCs)

Particulars During F.Y.
2020-21

During F.Y.
2021-22

During F.Y.
2022-23

No. of  Business Correspondents 995 995 995

PMJDY/SB accounts opened by BCs 137799 77545 75873

RD accounts opened by BCs 1527 1180 26817

No. of Transactions performed by BCs 9984730 9556961 8797554

Transaction Value (Rs. in Crore) 4784.62 5510.29 5390.92

Average transaction value (in Rs.) 4792/- 5767/- 6128/-

Amt. of Transaction per BC Per Day (in Rs.) 131744/- 151727/- 148438/-

Per Day per BC transactions 27.49 26.37 24.22

Per Transaction Cost at BC points (in Rs.) 17.91 20.03 15.33

 Geographical Information System (GIS):

As per the direction of Department of Financial
Services, MoF, GoI, the Bank has submitted Geo-
graphical Information System pertaining to Bank
Master, Branch Master, ATM Master, Corporate BC
Master, Bank Mitra Master and Bank Mitra Loca-
tion Master to Canara Bank for onward submis-
sion to DFS, MoF, GoI.

Residents can download Jan Dhan Darshak ap-

plication of DFS, GoI from Google Play Store and
can view our Bank Branches, ATMs and BC Loca-
tions in the application.

  Financial Literacy Centers (FLCs)

Bank has established Five Financial Literacy Cen-
tres under the banner of CANARA Financial Advi-
sory Trust (CFAT) sponsored by Canara Bank.
The details of all FLCs established by the Bank
are as follows.

Sl.No. District Center Date of Opening
1 YSR Kadapa Vellaturu 30.09.2013

2 Ananthapuramu Kalyanadurgam 26.06.2014

3 Kurnool Adoni 27.03.2015

4 SPSR Nellore Naidupeta 31.03.2015

5 Prakasam Kandukuru 31.03.2015

FLCs have conducted programs in Schools, Col-
leges, Skill Development centers and Villages fo-
cusing on Students, Farmers, SHG members,
Senior Citizens, PMJDY customers etc.,

As per RBI guidelines, all the 5 FLCs have con-

ducted Financial Literacy Programs on "Going Digi-
tal" and also for "Target Groups" every month.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, FLCs have
conducted 1063 Financial Literacy Programmes
benefitting 95,126 persons.
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Indicators Total

No. of Financial Literacy Campaigns conducted 1063

No. of Persons attended the Campaigns 95126
No. of Persons having Bank Accounts 90916

No. of Persons opened bank accounts after the program 7204

No. of persons visited the centre 3159

No. of persons counselled through mobile 2122

Financial Literacy Initiatives

Financial Literacy Week (Feb 13-17, 2023):

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has earmarked
one week in a year as "Financial Literacy Week
(FLW)" with the aim of furthering financial literacy
and thereby creating awareness on key financial
topics. It entails a coordinated campaign along with
standard set of prescribed activities held across the
country.

The Reserve Bank of India vide Cir. No: FIDD
(APRO)/FI-FL/825/01.02.006/2022-23, Dated:
08.02.2023 has directed all Banks to observe the
week February 13th -17th, 2023 as a Financial Lit-
eracy Week across the country with the theme -
"Good Financial Behavior - Your Saviour".

The above theme is one of the strategic objectives
of the National Strategy for Financial Education 2020-
2025. As a part of the theme, the emphasis would
be to sensitize the general public on the following
two important areas.

i. Active saving, planning and budgeting.
ii. Prudent use of digital financial services.

The contents in the form of high resolution posters
for Financial Literacy have been developed by RBI
and supplied in soft form.

Further, as per instructions of RBI, all Branches
have displayed the posters in a prominent place
inside the branch premises and shall continue to
display for a period of at least six months after
the financial literacy week.

Financial and Digital Literacy Camps
(FDLC):

RBI has advised all Rural Branches to conduct
Financial Literacy Program on "Financial and Digi-
tal Literacy Camps" during every quarter. As a re-
sult, our bank's rural branches have organized a
total of 1789 "Financial & Digital Literacy Camps"
programs in villages, with the financial assistance
of NABARD. Furthermore, our bank has conducted
31 Nukkad Nataks/Street Play camps in our urban
centers. Bank has utilized the services of Folk Art-
ists for attracting more number of customers to
the meetings.

Publicity material in the form of pamphlets, bro-
chures and banners were distributed for spread-
ing awareness among the rural people. Branches
covered the following broad topics in FDLC
programmes':

All the topics available in FAME Booklet.

Digital Platforms i.e., UPI and *99# (USSD).
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Latest Technological development in our Bank
i.e. APGB Digi Khata, e-Fixed Deposit,
WhatsApp Banking, UPI, Mobile recharges
through Mobile Banking app, e-Passbook, QR
Codes, e-Commerce, Mobile Banking, Internet
Banking, AePS etc.,

Benefits of Aadhaar and Mobile Seeding into
Bank Accounts.

Aadhaar Authentication of all CASA accounts.

About establishment of Aadhaar Enrollment
Centers in our specified bank branches and
also on the facilities available at the centers
(Enrollment /Update facility).

Money transfer- Concept of transfer of money
through NEFT/RTGS, IMPS through banks (in-
ter bank and intra bank)

Basics of credit- Micro credit, credit and inter-
est, prudential use of credit, credit for invest-
ment vs credit for spending, credit cards, timely
and regular repayment etc.

Role of BC and his/her relation with bank and
transactions through Micro ATMs i.e. PMJDY
account opening, RD account opening, AePS
On-Us and AePS Off-Us transactions, RuPay

On-Us and RuPay Off-Us Transactions, Third
Party Credits, SHG Dual Authentication etc.,

Salient feature of PMJDY scheme, enhanced
overdraft facility & RuPay KCC and RuPay
debit cards. Benefit of utilization of RuPay
cards.

Universal Social Security Schemes -PMJJBY,
PMSBY and APY and benefits of enrolling in
the schemes.

Aadhaar Enrollment Centres

UIDAI vide Gazette Notification No: 13012/79/2017/
Legal-UIDAI (No. 4 of 2017) Dated: 14.07.17, has
directed that every Scheduled Commercial Bank
has to set up Aadhaar Enrollment and update
facility inside its bank premises at a minimum of 1
out of their every 10 branches.

Accordingly, Bank has established Aadhaar Enroll-
ment Centres in 55 identified Branches through
vendors under outsourced model. The residents
are availing the services of our Bank centers for
Aadhaar Enrollment/Updation.

Bank has achieved Average of 10.25 enrollments/
updates per center during FY 2022-23.
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Particulars 2021-22 2022-23

   A/cs    Amount A/cs Amount

A. PRIORITY SECTOR
a. Farm Sector

i) Short Term
( KCC / JL (Ag) / Produce loans) 781154 911744.95 776751 910321.19

     ii)     Term 314994 266479.52 393610 354105.57

    iii)     Allied /SHG 124990 386488.87 124754 425454.49

                                              Total of  ( a ) 1221138 1564713.34 1295115 1689881.25

b.  Non - Farm Sector 171279 149721.04 168630 162764.77

c. Other Priority Sector 106247 166168.46 91583 139614.08

               TOTAL OF PRIORITY (a+b+c) 1498664 1880602.84 1555328 1992260.10

B. NON-PRIORITY SECTOR 36611 132339.31 55201 194099.94

                         GRAND TOTAL ( A + B ) 1535275 2012942.15 1610529 2186360.04

Bank has a clientele base of 1610529 under loans

and advances as at the end of March, 2023 as

against 1535275 as at the end of March, 2022. The

Per Branch Advances stood at Rs.3960.80 lakh

and per employee advances was Rs.815.20 lakh

as on 31.03.2023.

The Priority Sector advances constitute 91.12%
of total advances.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Outstanding Advances

The loans and advances of the bank stood at

Rs.21863.60 crores as against the previous year's

level of Rs.20129.42 crores, registering a growth

of 8.62%.

The sector-wise position of loans and advances

outstanding

(Rs. in lakhs)
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Loan Disbursements

During the year under report, bank has made credit disbursements to a tune of Rs.1911534.90 lakh as
against the disbursements of Rs.1850701.82 lakh in the previous year.

The comparative position of sector-wise loan disbursements :
(Rs. in lakhs)

    2021-22 2022-23
  A/cs   Amount A/cs Amount

A. PRIORITY SECTOR
a. Farm Sector

i) Short Term
(KCC/JL(Ag)/Produce Loans) 716457 812891.65 694862 791539.28

ii) Agrl. Term 256708 233677.94 398707 331071.96

iii) Agrl. Allied /SHG 54938 307786.91 48873 328374.19

                                   Total of  ( a ) 1028103 1354356.50 1142442 1450985.43

b.  Non - Farm Sector 81454 98169.31 89846 139332.14

c. Other Priority Sector 65728 147387.47 103870 183613.92

The District-wise outstanding position of loans and advances

Particulars

2021-22 2022-23

   A/cs    Amount   A/cs Amount

Anantapuramu 204797 274254.91 217628 296570.20

Annamaiah 85655 120692.12 91227 133859.07

Bapatla 69215 86247.91 69656 91602.19

Kadapa 206028 287520.63 217839 312175.10

Kurnool 183767 229212.55 196406 249145.86

Nandyal 139314 182838.28 146100 202032.86

Nellore 186122 240130.47 193396 260722.07

Prakasam 192560 256850.75 198948 278612.01

Sri Satya Sai 217063 274521.65 228185 294510.40

Tirupati 50754 60672.86 51114 67130.28

Total 1535275 2012942.15 1610529 2186360.04

(Rs. in lakhs)

District
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Annual Credit Plan

Bank has continued to play effective role in imple-
mentation of Annual Credit Plans of Anantapuramu,
Annamaiah, Bapatla, Y.S.R.Kadapa, Kurnool,

No. of ACP  Achievement as on % Achievement
branches Target 31.03.2023 to Target

Anantapuramu 65 190569.00 253839.56 133.20%
Annamaiah 35 123227.00 118447.28 96.12%
Bapatla 24 125076.00 76449.16 61.12%
Kadapa 77 154112.00 276248.49 179.25%
Kurnool 79 144155.00 221627.08 153.74%
Nandyal 51 144945.00 185671.35 128.10%
Nellore 70 195313.00 226978.29 116.21%
Prakasam 72 187661.00 244566.09 130.32%
Sri Satya Sai 58 107668.00 252019.90 234.07%
Tirupati 21 178725.00 55687.70 31.16%
Total 552 1551451.00 1911534.90 123.21%

Nandyal,  S.P.S.R.Nellore, Prakasm, SriSatya Sai
& Tirupati Districts during the year.

District-wise Annual Credit Plan 2022-23 - Targets Vs Achievements
(Rs. in lakhs)

Farmers meeting at Kodumuru Branch, Kurnool Region

    2021-22 2022-23
  A/cs   Amount A/cs Amount

d. Indirect Finance  through FSCSs
          TOTAL OF PRIORITY (a+b+c+d) 1175285 1599913.28 1336158 1773931.49

B. NON-PRIORITY SECTOR 219288 250788.52 40387 137603.41

                       GRAND TOTAL ( A + B ) 1394573 1850701.82 1376545 1911534.90

Particulars

District
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(i) Launching of RuPay Kisan Credit Cards:

Bank has launched RuPay Kisan Credit Card for
the use of KCC borrowers / farmers.  Out of the
total number of 702644 accounts, bank has issued
700017 RuPay Kisan Credit Cards up to
31.03.2023.

(ii) Sunna Vaddi Panta Runalu (SVPR) Scheme
of Govt. of Andhra Pradesh:

Government of Andhra Pradesh had announced
the scheme of "Sunna Vaddi Panta Runalu" for
PKCC/Crop Loan borrowers vide G.O.Rt.No.464,
dt.30.06.2020 and bank has implemented the
scheme as advised by the SLBC of Andhra

Pradesh.

Under SVPR Scheme, bank has audited the eli-
gible SVPR claims of Rs.57,12,25,280.28 for the
FY 2022-23, in case of PKCC/Crop Loans closed
before the due date and informed to GoAP.

Financial Assistance to Uncovered Farmers/
Non-Farmers/Tenant Farmers/LEC/CCRC
Holders

As per the directions of Ministry of Finance, Gov-
ernment of India, bank has identified and extended
finance to hitherto uncovered farmers/non-loanee
farmers under KCC/GCC/other schemes.  Bank
has covered 294629 non-loanee farmers, disburs-

Sector-wise Achievements under Annual Credit Plan 2022-23
                                                                                                                  (Rs. in lakhs)

Annual Achievement %
Sl.No. Sector Target  for  as on Achievement

2022-23 31.03.2023 to Target

Pragathi Kisan Credit Card Scheme (PKCC)

The performance of bank in implementation of the Kisan Credit Card Scheme is furnished in the table
below:

                                                                                                                          (Rs. in lakhs)

Disbursements Outstanding

No. of cards    Amount No. of cards Amount

2022-23 628821 738098.24 702644 855152.50

1 Short-Term Agriculture 886357 791539 89.30%

2 Agriculture Term / Allied Activities 291655 659446 226.10%

3 NFS & Other Priority Sector 223938 322946 144.21%

4 Total Priority Sector Advances 1401950 1773931 126.53%
5 Non-Priority sector Advances 149501 137603 92.04%

6 Total Advances 1551451 1911534 123.21%

Year
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ing loans to a tune of Rs.392898 Lakhs from
01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023. Of the above, 46772
non-loanee farmers have been assisted under
PKCC scheme to the tune of Rs.47313 lakh up to
31.03.2023.

Joint Liability Groups (JLGs)

Based on the scheme guidelines communicated
by NABARD, the scheme for financing Joint Liabil-
ity Groups is formulated to augment flow of credit
to Loan Eligibility Card holders, Tenant Farmers,
Share Croppers, Small and Marginal farmers, who
do not have proper title to the land holding. The
scheme is being effectively implemented by way
of extending collateral free loans to them, thereby
building mutual trust and confidence between
banks and tenant farmers.

During the year 2022-23, 473 Joint Liability Groups
were extended financial assistance to a tune of
Rs.1011 lakhs. As on 31.03.2023, bank has
financed 1265 JLGs with an outstanding amount
of Rs.1282 lakhs.

National Rural Livelihood Mission (NRLM):

The Ministry of Rural Development, Govt. of India
has launched National Rural Livelihood Mission
(NRLM) by replacing the existing "Swarna Jayanthi
Gram Swarozgar Yojana" (SGSY) Scheme.  The
NRLM is the flagship programme of the Govt. of
India promoting poverty reduction through building
strong institutions of the poor, particularly women,
and enabling these institutions to access a range
of financial services and livelihood services.  The
NRLM focuses on building, nurturing and strength-
ening the institutions of poor women, including the
SHGs and their federations at village and higher
levels.  The mission will provide a continuous hand-
holding support to the institutions of poor for a pe-

riod of 5-7 years till they come out of abject pov-
erty.

As per the scheme guidelines, all the districts in
the country are covered under NRLM.

NABARD advised to implement the scheme guide-
lines in all districts from financial year 2022-23 .  In
tune with the NABARD  guidelines Bank has imple-
mented NRLM w.e.f 01.04.2023. As per scheme
SHG loans up to Rs.3.00 lakhs under the scheme,
credit shall be extended at a concessional interest
rate of 7% per annum. For outstanding credit bal-
ance up to Rs.3 lakhs, banks will be subvented at
a uniform rate of 4.5% per annum during FY 2022-
23 and loans above Rs.3.00 lakhs and up to
Rs.5.00 lakhs under the scheme, credit will be
extended at a ROI of 10% per annum. For outstand-
ing credit balance above Rs.3.00 lakhs and up to
Rs.5.00 lakhs, banks will be subvented at a uni-
form rate of 5% per annum during FY 2022-23.

Bank has claimed Rs.101.87 crores interest sub-
vention up to three quarters in the FY 2022-23 out
of which bank  received claim amount of Rs.32.58
crores, pertaining to Q1.

However, in the state of Andhra Pradesh, all Self
Help Groups are eligible for Vaddi Leni Runalu upto
Rs.3.00 lakhs on prompt repayment of loans as
per repayment schedule.

National Urban Livelihoods Mission (NULM):

The Ministry of Housing & Urban Poverty Allevia-
tion (MoHUPA), Govt. of India launched National
Urban Livelihoods Mission (NULM) by restructur-
ing Swarna Jayanti Shahari Rozgar Yojana (SJSRY)
effective from 24.09.2013 in all district headquar-
ters (irrespective of population) and all the towns
with population of 1.00 lakh or more.



34

ANDHRA PRAGATHI GRAMEENA BANK
Annual Report

2022 - 202317th

PRADHAN MANTRI AWAS YOJANA (PMAY):

The Ministry of Urban and Poverty alleviation and
Ministry of Rural Development have issued guide-
lines for extending Credit linked Interest Subsidy
scheme for Economically Weaker Sections/ Low
Income Group/ Middle Income Group in notified
urban centers and in rural areas.  The scheme
PMAY (Urban) and PMAY-G was implemented by
our bank. Bank has entered MoU with National
Housing Bank (NHB) for implementation of the
above said scheme in the urban and rural areas in
bank from 2017-18.

Bank has received Interest Subsidy to an extent of
Rs.15.35 crores in EWS, MIG I & MIG II schemes
under PMAY till 31.03.2023 and credited the same
to 761 beneficiary accounts.

National Handloom Development Programme
for Handloom Weavers (NHDP)

Bank has implemented the National Handloom
Development Programme (NHDP), wherein the
Government has announced Interest Subvention
with a maximum of 7% p.a. for a period of 3 years
and bank to provide Term Loans & Working Capi-
tal Loans at the Interest of 6% to Handloom Sec-
tor. The margin money will be provided @
Rs.10,000/- per weaver for the fresh loans ar-
ranged to weavers. The Margin Money and Inter-
est Subsidy for the loans sanctioned under MUDRA
Weavers scheme during 2022-23 has been pro-
cessed through Handloom Weavers Portal being
maintained by PNB.

Bank has claimed Margin Money of Rs.76.60 lakhs
and interest Subsidy of Rs.17.33 lakhs under
Weavers MUDRA (PMMY) Scheme during the FY
2022-23.

Centrally Sponsored Schemes of Animal Hus-
bandry Sector, administered by NABARD

Bank is implementing the Animal Husbandry
schemes introduced by the Government of India
under Entrepreneurship Development & Employ-
ment Generation (EDEG) Component of National
Livestock Mission (NLM) which includes Poultry
Venture Capital Fund (PVCF), Pig Development
(PD), Salvaging of Male Buffalo Calves (SMBC)
Integrated Development of Small Ruminants &
Rabbits (IDSRR), Area based Development
Schemes etc.

Centrally Sponsored Interest Subsidy (CSIS)
Scheme on Education Loans:

The Government of India has been providing Inter-
est Subsidy on Education Loans disbursed after
01.04.2009 to the students belonging to economi-
cally weaker sections, whose annual gross paren-
tal/family income is up to Rs.4.50 lakh. Bank has
submitted Interest Subsidy claims to a tune of
Rs.1,50,80,800/- in respect of 608 loan accounts
for the financial year 2022-23.

Padho Pardesh:

The Ministry of Minority Affairs, Govt. of India has
launched a new scheme for the students belong-
ing to Minority Communities, namely, "Padho
Pardesh", by providing Interest Subsidy on Edu-
cation Loans for Overseas Studies effective from
2013-14 onwards whose annual gross parental/
family income is up to Rs.6.00 lakh, with a view to
provide them better opportunities for higher edu-
cation abroad and enhance their employability.  The
loans sanctioned and disbursed from 2013-14 on-
wards will only be eligible for Interest Subsidy and
the loans arranged before the FY 2013-14 are not
eligible.
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As per the instructions of the Ministry of Minority
Affairs, the Canara Bank, which is designated as
the Nodal Bank, will open the Web Portal for a pe-
riod of two months in every quarter in order to claim
the Interest Subsidy on Education Loans provided
to such students on quarterly basis.

As per the latest IBA Guidelines Padho Pardesh
intersest subsidy scheme stands discontinued
from 2022-2023. However, the existing beneficia-
ries as on 31.03.2022 will continue to receive the
interest subsidy during the moratorium of the loan,
subject to compliance with the extant guidelines.

Hence, Bank has submitted Interest Subsidy
claims to a tune of Rs.4,20,971/- in respect of 03
loan  accounts for the financial year 2022-23.

Dr. Ambedkar Central Sector Scheme on Inter-
est Subsidy on Educational Loan for Overseas
Studies for OBCs & EBCs (ACSISOBCEBC
Scheme):

The Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment,
Government of India, has introduced a new
Scheme, namely, Dr. Ambedkar Central Sector
Scheme of Interest Subsidy on Educational Loan
for Overseas studies for Other Backward Class
(OBCs) & Economically Backward Classes
(EBCs) (ACSISOBCEBC Scheme) category,
whose annual gross parental/family income is up
to Rs.8.00 lakhs.

The Scheme envisages providing Interest Subsidy
on Education Loans for Overseas Studies to the
students belonging to OBC/EBC for the Morato-
rium Period of study, to pursue approved courses
of studies abroad such as Masters, M Phil, Ph. D
level and will facilitate to promote educational ad-
vancement of students from OBC & EBC catego-
ries and enhance their employability. The Scheme

is effective from 2014-15 onwards.  Claims shall
be submitted on quarterly basis.

As per the guidelines, bank has submitted Interest
Subsidy Claims to a tune of Rs.36,10,003/- in re-
spect of 57 loan accounts for the F.Y. 2022-23.

Interest Subvention Scheme for PKCC:

Bank has submitted the Interest Subvention claim
@ 2% and @1.5% to a tune of Rs.113,52,83,633.31
for PKCC and PKCC AH & F pertaining to the year
2022-23.

Bank has also extended 3% Additional Interest
Subvention of Rs.155,02,28,639.53 to the borrow-
ers on prompt repayment of Crop Loans and PKCC
AH & F loans during the year 2022-23 and submit-
ted the claim to NABARD. In tune with the direc-
tions of GoI, Dept of Agriculture & Farmers Wel-
fare Bank has implemented KCC-MISS portal.

PKCC Documentation tool:

The existing process of filling up of PKCC docu-
ments manually is time-consuming and prone to
human errors attracting adverse comments dur-
ing RBIA of the branches. To simplify the documen-
tation and lessen human errors to a greater ex-
tent, the necessary measures were taken by the
Head Office with the support of IT Department. To
automate the process of documentation, a new tool
is developed by the IT Department for the genera-
tion and printing of Pragathi Kisan Credit Card
documents. The newly developed offline tool is user
friendly, reduces the burden of filling up documents,
and ensures a high standard of Documentation.

Salient features of the Tool are as follows:

(a) Tool helps in capturing MIS data such as Caste,
Crop details with survey no etc.
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(b) Tool will enable the branches to print the docu-
ments ADN-7, ADN-11 & ADN-8.

(c) Tool will also help in capturing full details of the
Co-borrower.

(d) MIS will be saved in Branch server which can
be centrally picked for data maintenance &
Backup.

Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY)
Over Draft Facility:

The ambitious objective of this National Mission on
Financial Inclusion, i.e., "Pradhan Mantri Jan
Dhan Yojana (PMJDY)" is ensuring access to
various financial services like availability of Basic
Savings Bank Deposit (BSBD) Account, access
to need based credit, remittances facility, insurance
and pension to the excluded sections i.e. weaker
sections & low income groups.

As per the Mission "PMJDY", all uncovered house-
holds shall be covered with banking facilities by
opening basic bank accounts in Phase-I.  After
satisfactory operation of such accounts for six
months, overdraft facility has to be provided to ev-
ery basic banking account holder (only one account
in a household, preferably to the lady member of
household) under Phase-II.

As per PMJDY guidelines, bank is offering over-
draft facility of Rs.2000/- (with a maximum of
Rs.10000/-) for all eligible PMJDY account hold-
ers immediately after completion of 6 months from
the date of opening of PMJDY account.

This overdraft facility given to the customers in the
PMJDY account is a clean overdraft and an unse-
cured advance given to the weaker sections of the
society.

PRADHAN MANTRI 'MUDRA' YOJANA
(PMMY):

A new Scheme "Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana
(PMMY)" has been launched by the Hon'ble Prime
Minister Sri Narendra Modi on 08.04.2015 with an
objective to "Funding the unfunded" and "Formal-
izing the informal" to facilitate entrepreneurs whose
credit needs are up to Rs.10.00 lakh in Manufac-
turing, Trading and Services.

The credit facilities granted up to Rs.10 lakh under
MSE, including the Overdraft facility of Rs.10000/-
sanctioned under Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana
(PMJDY), are to be covered under PMMY in the
following 3 categories, based on the amount of
credit facility sanctioned:

Category "SHISHU" "KISHORE"   "TARUN"

Credit Facility Rs.50,001/- to Above Rs.5 Lakh  &
sanctioned Rs.5.00 Lakh Up to Rs.10 Lakhs

As per the advice of the Micro Units Development
and Refinance Agency (MUDRA) Ltd., to appoint
Nodal Officer, at Head Office Level and also at
Regional Offices for review of performance under
PMMY, bank has appointed Chief Manager, Credit
as Nodal Officer of the bank at Head Office and
the Senior Managers of Credit Department in the

Regional Offices, as Nodal Officers at RO level.

The Target and performance of bank under three
categories of MUDRA Loans as on 31.03.2023 is
furnished hereunder:

Up to Rs.50,000/-
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WOMEN DEVELOPMENT CELL

Bank has setup the Women Development Cell in
the Year 1996 under the Scheme introduced by
NABARD in 1995. The Women Development Cell
has been functioning as per the guidelines issued
by NABARD.

Consequent upon the merger of RRBs, NABARD
has implemented a new scheme for supporting the
Women Development Cells w.e.f 1st April 2007,
according to which, grant assistance would be
extended to bank for a period of three years
towards maintenance of gender disaggregated
data, mobility allowance, awareness creation,
publicity campaigns and for celebrating Interna-
tional Women's Day. On the request of bank,
NABARD has provided the assistance for one
more year i.e. up to 31.03.2011. Bank had received
Rs.6,60,000/- as grant assistance from NABARD
up to 31.03.2011. The expenditure on mainte-
nance of the Women Development Cell is be-
ing borne by bank from 01.04.2011.

The Cell is working towards fulfillment of the ob-
jective of Women Empowerment and in the pro-
cess, making efforts for the healthy growth of SHG
portfolio, credit flow to women and skill upgradation.

During the year, Bank linkage / Awareness / Re-
covery / Sensitization meets were organized,
wherein the best practices followed by different
SHGs/VOs/ branches were shared for the benefit
of all the partners of SHG movement.

International Women's Day (IWD)

Bank has been observing 8th March every year as
International Women's Day. Bank has celebrated
International Women's day on 8th March 2023 at
different centers in the Bank's area of operation
involving prominent women and members of SHGs
and explained the efforts of the Bank towards
women empowerment and various avenues avail-
able to them for development besides the rights of
women under various Acts. Head Office & all
Regional Offices have conducted mega
programmes involving surrounding branches and
honored women dignitaries.

The activities conducted and efforts made by bank
focusing importance of International Women's Day
were widely covered by the media including elec-
tronic media, local newspapers etc. The District
administration of all the 10 Districts has com-
mended the efforts made by bank in organizing
various events for the benefit of women.

   (Rs. in Crores)

Achievement as on 31.03.2023 in Categories of MUDRA Loans
   (Rs. in Crores)

                            Disbursement

Target for 2022-23 1400.00

Achievement as on 31.03.2023 1419.53

Shishu Kishore Tarun
(Loans up to Rs. 50,000) (Loans from Rs.50,001 (Loans above Rs.5.00 to

to Rs.5.00 lakh) Rs.10.00 lakh)

252.42 1140.75 26.36
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TRAININGS THROUGH CB RSETI (CB RURAL
SELF EMPLOYMENT TRAINING INSTITUTE)
& RUDSETI (RURAL DEVELOPMENT & SELF
EMPLOYMENT TRAINING INSTITUTE).

Bank had taken initiative in identifying the unem-
ployed youth for skill upgradation training and nomi-
nated them for the training programmes at CB
RSETI, Kadapa & Kurnool and RUDSETI,
Anantapuramu & Ongole.

Good Number of candidates are sponsored by our
bank for skill development at RUDSETI
Anantapuramu & Ongole since inception of the
said institutes.

SOCIAL / RURAL DEVELOPMENT

As a part of social responsibility, the branches have
conducted various Rural Extension  Programmes
during the year 2022-23.

Self Help Groups (SHG) Portfolio

Self Help Groups have become powerful instru-

ment to empower women in socio-economic front,
particularly in rural areas. Bank has been actively
participating in SHG - Bank linkage program for
more than a decade and has extended financial
assistance to Self Help Groups to a tune of
Rs.25182.39 crores from 1995-96 to 2022-23.
During the year 2022-23, 55942 groups were credit
linked and loans were disbursed to a tune of
Rs.3984.13 crore.

The outstanding level of SHG loans as on
31.03.2023 in bank stood at Rs.5021.95 crore cov-
ering 129192 accounts. Bank is servicing 128794
Savings Bank  Accounts of Self Help Groups as
on 31.03.2023.

The concept of preparing Micro Credit Plan, de-
pending upon the needs of the group members has
been adopted to ensure extension of adequate fi-
nancial assistance to SHGs as per the policy guide-
lines.

The average per group outstanding is Rs.3.89 Lakh
as on 31.03.2023.  Out of the total Priority sector
advances of Rs. 19923 Crores, SHG advances
constitute 25.21% as on 31.03.2023.

Details of linkage of Self Help Groups, amount disbursed and outstanding are furnished here
below.

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Anantapuramu 16375 7153 52078.25 7.28 16395 63235.90

Kadapa 12162 4764 41340.43 8.68 12297 57065.98

Kadiri 17669 7534 57405.41 7.62 17726 75216.31

Kurnool 18517 8982 50315.75 5.60 18441 54558.65

Region

No. of
SB

accounts
of SHGs

as on
31.03.2023

SHGs credit
linked
during

the year
2022-23

(Accounts)

Loan
amount

disbursed
during the

year 2022-23

Average
per group

lending
2022-23

Loans outstanding
as on

31.03.2023

AmountAccounts
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Bank has entered into MoU with Society for Elimi-
nation of Rural Poverty (SERP), Hyderabad on
07.08.2010 to have a system for a close and proper
monitoring of the SHG-Bank linkage programme
and to have an understanding on certain issues
for augmenting credit flow and orderly growth of
the programme.

The NABARD has suggested certain norms to be
carried out by Banks at two stages keeping in view
the present outreach of self help programme, quan-
tum of credit dispensed to SHGs etc. Based on
the suggestions made by NABARD, bank has is-
sued guidelines to the branches on assessment
of Self Help Groups at the time of first credit link-
age and for assessment of credit requirement of
matured SHGs, where higher quantum of credit is
requested.

Bank has implemented NRLM guidelines, issued
by RBI, during the year with an emphasis to take
up sustainable livelihood activities by the individual
members in the Self Help Groups.  All the SHGs
promoted by SERP in Andhra Pradesh are NRLM
compliant SHGs.

Steps initiated by bank to overcome the bottle-
necks in the path of SHG - Bank linkage and
to arrest mis-utilisation thereby facilitating
smooth credit flow to SHGs

01. Disbursed loans in the presence of all mem-
bers of the group by explaining the details like
loan amount sanctioned, rate of interest and
repayment to be met by the group every month.

02. Initiated steps to route the loan proceeds
through the individual SB accounts of the
members based on resolution given by the
Group.

03. Educated the groups, who are availing credit
from second time onwards to take up the eco-
nomic activities for generating additional in-
come and to attain sustainability.

04. Organized capacity building programs to SHGs
through RUDSETIs / CB RSETIs and SERP /
MEPMA on an ongoing basis.

Nandyal 17111 8300 55894.93 6.73 17043 61375.92

Nellore 20776 8945 66122.96 7.39 20931 85616.00

Ongole 14849 5657 42787.10 7.56 14885 62202.15

Rajampeta 11335 4607 32468.41 7.05 11474 42925.42

Total 128794 55942 398413.24 7.12 129192 502196.33

Region
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05. Ensured that the genuine financial require-
ments of the SHG members are met with so
that the members will not approach MFIs.

06. Sanctioned loans to SHGs to their full eligibility
as per guidelines within 15 days of repayment
in the case of repeat finance and immediately
on attainment of eligibility in the case of fresh
finance.

07. Disbursed SHG loans fully and refrained from
locking the loan amounts in deposits and mar-
keting of insurance products from SHG mem-
bers.

The Project Directors, DRDA / MEPMA / VELUGU
of all the Ten Districts have been apprised of the
overdue position from time to time and requested
to extend all necessary help for regularization of
all the overdue loans.

Guidelines on "Community Based Recovery
Mechanism" have been communicated to all
Branches with an advice to convene the meetings
of Bank Linkage Committee on 28th of every month
in the premises of the Branch and utilize the CBRM
for recovery of the loans. Officials from the Re-
gional Office/Head Office are being deputed to
supplement the efforts of the Branches in recov-
ery of overdue SHG loans.

SELF HELP ENTREPRENEURS "SHE"
SCHEME:

Bank has launched a special Scheme called
"SHE-SELF HELP ENTERPRENURE" mainly
to hasten the empowerment of women in en-
trepreneur aspect and to bring awareness and
to increase access to high amount of re-
sources.

The scheme has been proposed to implement
to empower women by making them self-sus-
tainable and self-reliant.  The groups will be
imparted appropriate training through our Spon-
sor Banks RUDSETIs/RSETIs and any other
banking institutes.

The scheme comprises of both working capi-
tal and term loan component with a Bank loan
up to a maximum of Rs.20.00 lakhs.

Central Registry under SARFAESI Act 2002
(CERSAI)

Bank has registered with the Central Registry and
a user administrator is created at each Regional
Office. The User Administrators at Regional Of-
fices authorizes the officers at Regional Offices to
access the Central Registry for various purposes
and only the authorized users will have access to
this system. The Regional Offices have been moni-
toring the registration of charge/creation of secu-
rity interest over the property, excluding the agri-
cultural lands.

The transactions relating to the Securitization and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and those re-
lated to mortgage by deposit of title deeds / Mov-
able / Hypothecation / Intangible to secure any loan
or advances by Banks and Financial Institutions,
as defined under SARFAESI Act, are to be regis-
tered in the Central Registry.

Credit Information Companies (CICs):

The Reserve Bank of India has directed all Credit
Institutions to become members of all CICs and
submit data (including historical data) to them and
also advised that the CICs and CIs shall keep the
credit information collected / maintained by them,
updated regularly on a monthly basis or at such
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shorter intervals as may be mutually agreed upon
between the CI and CIC in terms of Regulation 10
(a) (i) and (ii) of the Credit Information Companies
Regulations, 2006.

At present, the Bank is a member of the following
4 CICs:

(i) Credit Information Bureau (India) Limited
(CIBIL)

(ii) Equifax Credit Information Services Private
Limited

(iii) Experian Credit Information Company of India
Private Limited

(iv) CRIF High Mark Credit Information Services
Private Limited

Further, Reserve Bank of India directed the Banks
to dispense with obtaining "No Due Certifi-
cate" from the individual borrowers (including
SHGs & JLGs) in rural and semi-urban areas
for all types of loans including loans under
Government Sponsored Schemes, irrespective
of the amount involved, unless the Government
Sponsored Scheme itself provides for objection of
"No Dues Certificate" and also suggested to use
alternative framework of due diligence as part of
Credit Appraisal exercise other than the "No Due
Certificate".  One among the suggestions is "Credit
History Check through Credit Information Compa-
nies".

Integration of Land Records with Banks in
Andhra Pradesh - Bhoomi Project

The Government of Andhra Pradesh has developed
a module for integration of land records with banks
including the Bankers' Interface for land records

etc.  The CCLA, GoAP have created a Master User
ID for bank and bank in turn created branch Users
for using the application at branch level for provid-
ing online access for land records to banks and
other financial institutions.

Basically, the online access of the land records
has two major steps:

1. Providing Access to view / read only data of
centralized and digitally signed land records
to all banks / FIs in the state.

2. Provision of creating a charge on the land for
a bank Loan sanctioned against particular sur-
vey number.

The Govt. of AP has provided access to view / read
only data of land records and also for charge cre-
ation on the land. Bank has provided internet facil-
ity to all the branches for utilizing the said facility
and the branches are regularly creating the charge
on the land for the loans sanctioned against par-
ticular survey number besides viewing the data of
centralized land records before sanctioning a loan.

Borrowings:

During the year 2022-23, Bank has availed refi-
nance of Rs.292333.14 lakhs as against
Rs.356700.00 lakhs refinance availed in the previ-
ous year.

The purpose-wise data on limits sanctioned by
NABARD and NSFDC, utilization along with repay-
ments and refinance outstanding is furnished in
the following table.
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                  Limits sanctioned Utilized Repayments Outstanding

2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23  2021-22 2022-23

 A. NABARD

 ST-OPP 19000 .00 39197 .70 19000 .00 39197 .70 19000 .00 19000 .00 19000 .00 39197 .70

 ST-OC 26000 .00 43000 .00 26000 .00 43000 .00 24000 .00 26000 .00 26000 .00 4 3000 .00

 ST-DTP 1000 .00 0 . 0 0 1000 .00 0 . 0 0 200 .00 1000 .00 1000 .00 0 . 0 0

 ST-NPDP 2000 .00 0 . 0 0 2000 .00 0 . 0 0 800 .00 2000 .00 2000 .00 0 . 0 0

 AST-OSAO 42000 .00 120000 .00 42000 .00 80000 .00 55000 .00 42000 .00 42000 .00 80000 .00

 ST- 11000 .00 21000 .00 11000 .00 0 . 0 0 10000 .00 11000 .00 11000 .00 0 . 0 0
 OTHERS

 ST-SLF 65000 .00 0 65000 .00 0 . 0 0 65000 .00 65000 .00 65000 .00 0 . 0 0

 MT-Sch. 190700 .00 68513 .00 190700 .00 68513 .00 162906 .62 162339 .40 390884.50  297057.82

 MT-N.Sch
 /Liquidity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 Crunch

 MT (Con) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 TOTAL 356700.00 291710.70 356700.00 230710.70 336906.62 328339.40 556884.50 459255.52
 B. NSFDC 0 . 0 0 622 .44 0 . 0 0 622 .44 68 .11 84 .22 153 .25 691 .47

 Grand 356700.00 292333.14 356700.00 292333.14 336974.73 328423.62 557037.75 49946.99
 Total
*OD account

Purpose-wise data on borrowing limits sanctioned by NABARD & NSFDC - Utilization, repayments
and outstanding position as at 31.03.2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Conducting of "PALLE PRAGATHI SADASSU"
(Village Development Meet):

Understanding the need to penetrate deep in to the
villages, to bring awareness among the Rural Popu-
lace, about the products and services offered by
bank, the need for prompt repayment and the
benefit  attached to it, propagation of Financial Lit-

eracy among the under privileged sections of the
society, bank has undertaken a massive customer
contact program styled "PALLE PRAGTHI
SADASSU" (Village Development Meet) com-
menced on 01.11.2013 has been continued
throughout the year 2022-23 also.

Type
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The Main theme of "Palle Pragthi Sadassu" is:

1. To strengthen Banker & Customer relationship.

2. To tap the untapped potentialities still existing
in Rural Segment.

3. To penetrate into this arena for acquisition of
new clientele and to strengthen the existing
clientele base.

4. To enlighten the rural folk about the salient fea-
tures of our Products & Services.

5. To highlight the New Technological Initiatives
such as Core Banking/RTGS/NEFT/Mobile
Banking/Internet Banking and Mobile ATMs in-
troduced by APGB.

6. To emphasize on Financial Inclusion / Finan-
cial Literacy, DBT etc.

7. To inculcate the habit of Savings and Prompt
Repayment.

All the branches were advised to conduct at least
one Palle Pragathi Sadassu in each Service Area
Village.

ASSET CLASSIFICATION

The level of Standard Assets is Rs.2156833.35
lakhs constituting 98.65% of total advances as on
31.03.2023 as against Rs.1983304.51 lakhs as on
31.03.2022. The Gross NPA level is Rs. 29526.69
lakhs as on 31.03.2023 constituting 1.35% of total
advances. The Sub-standard assets constitute
0.40%, Doubtful Assets 0.73% and Loss Assets
0.22% of total Advances.

1 Standard 2156833.35 98.65%

2 Sub-standard 8730.34 0.40%

3 Doubtful 16031.07 0.73%

4 Loss 4765.28 0.22%

Total 2186360.04 100.00%

Sl.
No. Category of Advances

2022-23

Outstanding Amount % to total Advances

Classification of Advances
(Rs. in lakhs)
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Classification of Branches based on Level of NPAs
  (Rs. in lakhs)

NPAs - WRITTEN OFF

For the FY 2022-23, Bank has not implemented General write-off scheme. In case of One Time Settlement
Schemes the written-off amount is Rs.2311.48 lakhs.

(Rs. in lakhs)

RECOVERY OF LOANS

As per the Demand, Collection & Balance as at the end of June 2022, the Bank has recovered  Rs. 1443992.50
lakhs against the demand of Rs.1575155.50 lakhs resulting in 91.67% of recovery under both Priority
Sector and Non-Priority Sector advances.

  (Rs. in lakhs)

For Year ending For Year ending
31.03.2022 31.03.2023

No. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount

Written off Accounts 6 0.03 0 0.00

Written off under OTS Scheme 7280 1147.24 10230 2311.48

Written off Handloom Weavers 0 0.00 0 0

Total 7286 1147.27 10230 2311.48

Demand Collection Balance % of Recovery

1575155.50 1443992.50 131163.00 91.67

Description

NIL 46 38

Above 0 To 0.50 177 191

Above 0.50 to 1.00 100 111

Above 1.00 to 5.00 196 180

Above 5.00 to 10.00 23 23

Above 10.00 10 9

Total 552 552

% of NPA to total Advances
No. of Branches

As at 31.03.2023As at 31.03.2022

The Bank has initiated various measures to step
up recoveries in general and Non-Performing As-
sets in particular. Special group recovery drives,
video/con-cal conferences were conducted be-

sides settling the loans under OTS. Systematic
review of the NPAs/SMAs with special emphasis
on High Value NPAs was carried out by the Re-
gional Offices and Head Office.



48

ANDHRA PRAGATHI GRAMEENA BANK
Annual Report

2022 - 202317th

b. Amount of provisions made towards NPAs and Standard Assets as on 31.03.2023
 (Rs. in Lakhs)

1 Standard Assets 2156833.35 6100.36

2 Sub-Standard Assets 8730.34 1914.87

3 Doubtful Assets up to 1 year 6459.62 4758.31

4 Doubtful Assets 1-3 years 6033.73 4197.71

5 Doubtful Assets Above 3 years 3537.72 3508.44

6 Loss Assets 4765.28 4759.90

                                                                              Total 2186360.04 25239.59

Additional Provision on NPA 11651.78

TOTAL 36891.37

The provision made on Standard Assets as on
31.03.2023 is Rs.6100.36 lakhs.

Provision required on NPAs as per IRAC norms is
Rs.19139.23 lakhs and bank made additional pro-
vision of Rs. 11651.78 lakhs as a matter of pru-
dence and also to mitigate risks. The total provi-
sion provided on NPA as on 31.03.2023 is
Rs.30791.01 lakhs (Including Loan related Fraud
Provision of Rs.270.59 lakhs) and total provision

provided for total advances of the bank is
Rs.36891.37 lakhs.

SARFAESI  ACT

The provisions of SARFAESI Act are made appli-
cable to the Bank with effect from 17.05.2007.

Following is the progress made by the Bank in
enforcing SARFAESI  Act during FY 2022-23

(Rs. in lakhs)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS PER RBI GUIDELINES

a. Percentage of Net NPAs to Net Advances:

Description 31-03-2023

% of Net NPAs to Net Advances: Zero%

Sl. No. Description
Gross

Advances
Provision

held

Accounts identified Notices issued Amount Recovered

A/cs Amount A/cs Amount A/cs Amount

129 979.07 129 979.07 112 829.55

INVESTMENTS
The investments are made by the Bank in accor-
dance with the Investment Policy, which is based

on RBI guidelines, latest amendments issued by
RBI from time to time and in consultation with the
TID, Canara Bank, Mumbai.
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PROFITABILITY

 A. Income Earned

The details of income earned from various sources during 2021-22 and 2022-23 are furnished below:

(Rs. in lakh)

2021-22 2022-23

1. Income from Advances 175562.39 64.84% 193757.04 67.64%

2. Income from Investments and Balances with RBI 49655.30 18.34% 46619.93 16.27%

3. Other Income 45561.15 16.83% 46108.95 16.09%

Total 270778.84 100.00% 286485.92 100.00%

Sl. No.                          Particulars 2021-22 2022-23

1 SLR Investments 422259.83 371794.10

2 Non-SLR Investments 4078.60 4078.60

3 Term Deposits with Banks 234025.00 377525.00

4 Reverse Repo/SDF 49400.00 47500.00

TOTAL 709763.43 800897.70

Of which

5. a)   Approved Securities 422259.83 371794.10

b)   Other Securities 4078.60 4078.60

Income from Investments

6 a)   SLR 35001.01 27794.04

b)   Non-SLR 333.00 337.85

c)   Term Deposits with banks 14321.29 18488.04

7 Total 49655.30 46619.45

Average Return

8 a)   SLR 7.72 7.12

b)   Non-SLR 8.27 8.28

c)   Term Deposits with banks 5.42 6.30

9 Gross Investments 6.86 6.78

Comparative position of investments of the Bank is as under:
(Rs. in lakh)

Sl.No. Particulars
Amount Share Amount Share
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B. Expenditure Incurred

The comparative figures of expenditure incurred during 2021-22 and 2022-23
                  (Rs. in lakh)

FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Financial Ratios of the Bank for the current year as well as for the previous

Sl. No.                                           Particulars 2021-22 2022-23

1 Cost of deposit (%) 4.70 4.66

2 Yield on advances (%) 9.27 9.43

3 Financial Return (%) 8.05 8.23

4 Financial Cost (%) 4.01 3.88

5 Financial Margin (%) (3-4) 4.05 4.35

6 Transaction Cost (%) 2.79 2.25

7 Miscellaneous Income (%) 1.58 1.53

8 Net Margin (%) (5+7-6) 2.90 3.63

9 Net Interest Margin 4.33 4.63

2021-22 2022-23

1. Interest paid on

a. Deposits 85268.02 37.22% 84751.72 37.34%

b. Borrowings 26543.74 11.59% 28692.93 12.64%

2. Transaction Cost

a. Establishment 59765.38 26.09% 47337.27 20.86%

b. Other Operating Expenses 18162.36 7.92% 18481.37 8.14%

c. Provisions 39350.24 17.18% 47707.11 21.02%

                 Total 229089.74 100.00% 226970.40 100.00%

Sl. No. Particulars
Amount Share Amount Share
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO:

In terms of RBI instructions vide their letter
no.RPCD.CO.RRB.No.BC.60/03.05.33/2013-14,
dated: 26.11.2013, RRBs are advised to maintain
a minimum CRAR of 9% on an ongoing basis with
effect from 31.03.2014. The capital to risk weighed
assets ratio of the Bank has been calculated and
verified by the Central Statutory Auditors. The Bank's
Capital to total Risk Weighed Assets Ratio is
23.90% as at 31.03.2023.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY & NEW INITIA-
TIVES

Migration to Core Banking Solution:

Bank's data was migrated to CBS platform during
the year 2011. Subsequently, a number of devel-

opments were made in the CBS application,
ensuring more reliability of the data and providing
ease/user friendly to the users working in CBS
environment. Several modules including movement
of NPA have been made on real time basis, saving
time and manpower to the Bank and complying to
the RBI/NABARD guidelines.

Changes in CBS: In CBS, Implemented Auto SMS
trigger to the customer Registered Mobile Number
whenever any locker operations are performed as
per RBI directions.

Online Account Opening: Implemented 'Online
Savings Account' in the Bank through Android/iOS
Application with name 'APGB DIGI KHATA'.

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

The position of cash balance, average cash balance and balances with Reserve Bank of India and
commercial banks

(Rs. in lakh)

Sl. No.                                       Particulars   2021-22   2022-23

1. Cash in hand 9733.26 8227.83

2. Average Cash Balance 6360.23 6343.27

3. Average Cash Deposit Ratio 0.37 0.35

4. Balance in RBI A/c 67414.53 77362.23

5. Balance with Sponsor Bank 2205.95 1646.75

6. Balance with other Commercial Banks 4897.46 2810.27

MoUs with Care Health Insurance and Bajaj General Insurance Companies
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Online Fixed Deposit Opening:

Bank implemented Online Fixed deposit account
opening for the customers through Mobile Bank-
ing and Internet Banking.

Important features of Online Fixed Deposit:

Customer will have to choose the nomination
for the proposed deposit account.

Customer shall fund the deposit account from

Launch of APGB DIGI Khata for Digital Instant Savings Account

the Savings account maintained in our Bank
through online transfer in MB/INB.

Once the deposit is matured, customer can
close the same online.

Customer can also withdraw the deposit pre-
mature in online. Penal rate will be applicable
in the lines of branch channel only.
In case customer gets the FD receipt printed
in branch channel, then such FD will not be
allowed to be closed through online channel

Important features of APGB DIGI KHATA:

AADHAAR card is digitally verified through
linked mobile number

Scanning of Photo, Signature can be
seamlessly passed to CBS

CKYC reference number can be generated with
uploaded Digital documents on T+1 basis

Re KYC of customer is assessed based on
net worth

Nominee of the customer is captured online

Cheque book product is auto opened based
on customer request

e-mail address of the customer is captured for
pushing online account statement through
Mobile Banking

Debit Card Request Can be given online

Mobile Banking access channel can be en-
abled online

Internet Banking access channel can be en-
abled online

Available in Regional Telugu language also for con-
venience of the customers in addition to English
and Hindi languages.
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and the same will have to be closed through
Branch channel.

Further, accounts opened in online channel
without receipt printed will have to be closed
through online channel only. They cannot be
closed in branch channel.

Similarly, if FD is opened in branch channel,
then such deposits cannot be closed in online
channel.

QR Codes for Merchants:

Bank has issued QR codes to the eligible custom-
ers for performing merchant transactions. This
gives a scope for improving CASA in the Bank.

SWIFT :

Bank has introduced SWIFT facility through Canara
Bank. Customers of our Bank can now send inter-
national remittances from abroad to our Bank ac-
counts by mentioning SWIFT code of Canara Bank
so that funds can be credited to our Bank account
through Head Office.

Mobile Banking Activation through AADHAAR:

Bank has addressed the issue of need of physical
visit by the customers for Mobile Banking Activa-
tion by implementation of Mobile Banking activa-
tion through Dual authentication of Mobile and
AADHAAR OTP.

WhatsApp Banking:

Bank has implemented WHATSAPP BANKING
service to the customers in the Financial Year
2022-23.

Major features in WhatsApp Banking are as under

1. Account Services
a. Balance Enquiry
b. Mini Statement
c. Account Statement

2. Location Services
a. Locate Nearest Branch

b. Locate Nearest ATM
c. Locate Nearest BC

3. Complaint redressal
a. Debit Card Toll free number
b. Complaint mail for service issues

4. Information on Rates
a. Deposit interest rates
b. Loan interest rates
c. Service charges

Remote Onus Charges:

Bank has automated the Remote Onus Charges
within the system there by increasing the fee based
income.

Onus Charges:

Bank has automated the Onus Charges within the
system there by increasing the fee based income.
For more than 8 transactions in our Bank/Canara
Bank ATMs, system debits the charges.

Card On File Tokenization (CoFT):

Bank has implemented Card on File Tokenization
which allows secure way of ecommerce transac-
tions without storing the Debit Card details of the
customers of the Bank.

Dual Interface (DI) Card:

Bank has introduced new variant of Debit Card with
Dual Interface (DI) functionality wherein, NFC (Near
Field Card) technology is present. Customers can
transact contactless transactions.

On Boarding of “WhatsApp Banking” at our
Head Office on 30.03.2023
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TLS/TSS Upgrade in ATMs:

Bank has implemented TLS/TSS upgrade in ATMs
with enhanced security features reducing the TAT
(Turn Around Time) in transaction life cycle.

FIR +FMR in e-KYC:

Bank has implemented the security specifications
as per NPCI standards with FIR+FMR in e-KYC
solution.

Issuer Mini Statement monthly limit:

Bank has automated the restriction as per regula-
tors to generate only upto 5 mini statements per
month per customer in BC channel.

AEPS XML Migration:

Bank has migrated the version in AEPS channel in
XML format as required by NPCI.

Dual Authentication in Micro ATMs:

Bank has implemented two factor authentication
i.e., Mobile OTP and Finger authentication in Micro
ATMs.

IMPS XML Migration:

Bank has migrated the version in IMPS channel in
XML format as required by NPCI.

Account Aggregator:

Bank has implemented Account aggregator as FIU
(Financial Information user) in FY 2022-23. This
will facilitate the credit decision making by state-
ment of account access of other Bank accounts
of our customers.

UPI UDIR:

Bank has implemented UPI Online Dispute Reso-
lution which will mitigate the efforts of reconcilia-
tion and facilitate the auto reversal of failed trans-
actions.

UPI SI Mandate:

Bank has implemented recurring Mandate function-
ality under UPI platform.

UPI Registration through AADHAAR:

Bank has implemented UPI registration through
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AADHAAR functionality. This will act as a substi-
tute of debit card for the customers to perform
hassle free UPI transactions.

e-Note:

Bank has implemented e-Note (Digital Notes)
wherein, Head Office users can now prepare of-
fice/committee notes online thereby committing to
green environment.

Suggestion portal:

Bank has developed suggestions portal for the
employees of the Bank to give their valuable sug-
gestions for improvement of the products and so-
lutions in the Bank.

Bulk upload of CGTMSE:

Bank has developed in-house portal for facilitating
the bulk upload of CGTMSE files in Regional Of-
fices.

ADC Dispute Redressal portal:

Bank has developed in-house portal for knowing
the status of ADC transactions and also to raise

the grievances related to the same.

Proxy:

Bank has implemented Proxy solution across all
branches which will facilitate the employees to use
Internet within CBS systems. URLs whitelisted at
Head Office can be accessed by the users at
branches/offices.

Implementation of RTGS and NEFT

APGB is the first RRB in the country to obtain
membership in "Centralized Payment System"
from Reserve Bank of India. NEFT/RTGS was
implemented in the Bank during 2012 which proved
as an efficient alternative delivery channel for funds
transfer.

Bank implemented STP (Straight Through Pro-
cessing) in NEFT/RTGS where transactions per-
formed at Branches will be seamlessly credited to
beneficiary accounts without any manual interven-
tion and the limits are Rs.25 Lakhs for both NEFT
and RTGS.

Below is the data of NEFT/RTGS in FY 2022-23.

Description Transactions Count Amount in Crores

NEFT 48,51,209 12386

RTGS   1,88,091 41414

Implementation of Direct Benefit Transfer
Scheme through NACH

APGB is the first RRB on-boarded with NPCI for
Aadhaar Payment Bridge System (APBS),
Aadhaar Enabled Payment System (AEPS), Na-
tional Automated Clearing House (NACH), ACH,
DBT, DBTL etc., thus complying Govt of India guide-
lines. Transaction flow has been very smooth. As
mandated by GOI & NPCI, modified DBTL, PAHLA,
Account validation has been done very accurately
and effectively well in advance than various other
banks.

Host 2 Host in DBT is implemented by the Bank
from 08.03.2018, enabling processing of the trans-
actions for Aadhaar related credits (APB CR) and
Account based credits (ACH CR) as well as Ac-
count based mandate debits (ACH DR) effected
in CBS without any manual intervention. This is
the first of its kind in India among RRB's, where
many Banks have gone for Host 2 Host for credit
files only, but APGB implemented Host 2 Host for
both credit and debit files.
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Description Count of Transactions Amount In Crore

ACH CR 1058255 1007

ACH DR 268598 247

APB CR 14691280 3898

On boarding onto ECS enabled by NPCI
Successfully on-boarded to ECS as per NPCI
norms.

Sl. No. Region URBAN SEMI URBAN RURAL

1 ANANTAPURAMU 4 3 2

2 KADAPA 9 4 3

3 KADIRI 2 10 5

4 KURNOOL 8 5 3

5 NANDYAL 3 7 3

6 NELLORE 1 2 6

7 ONGOLE 4 2 4

8 RAJAMPETA 0 4 4

TOTAL 31 37 30

ATMs:
Bank has installed 98 ATMs. Out of which 95
are on-site and 3 are Mobile Demo Vans.

Details of ATMs installed as on 31.03.2023

All the ATMs of the Bank were made EMV com-
plaint as per directions of the regulators. Further,
in our ATMs, cassette swapping was implemented
in the financial year 2022-23.  Also, concealment
of LAN cabling was done to avoid any cyber threats.

Mobile Demo Vans

With the support of NABARD, Bank has purchased
5 Mobile demo vans and these are used to suc-
cessfully creating awareness on Bank's products
in the rural public. This helps spreading financial
literacy and the importance of digital banking. It

serves the purpose of providing additional services
to the customers as directed by GOI besides build-
ing up the image of the Bank in the industry.

Debit Card Management - RuPay

Administered the whole requirement and pro-
cessed the Card production with the help of the
Sponsor Bank.

Bank has completed EMV Issuer certification from
NPCI to make the Bank's RuPay Debit Cards work
in EMV enabled ATMs as mandated by RBI.

Transactions done during the year 2022-23
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Status is as under :

Issued 16,58,949 Debit Cards to the custom-
ers as on 31.03.2023

Issued 2,44,613 PMJDY Cards as on
31.03.2023.

Instant Debit Cards & Platinum Cards
Implementation

Bank has been extending Instant card facil-
ity for walk in customers satisfying the im-
mediate requirement of the customer.

Platinum Cards also issued to high value
accounts with certain add-on features like
additional insurance, free lounge facility at
Airports etc.,

Implementation of HRMS Package.

Bank has successfully implemented the
HRMS application at all the branches of the
bank in the year 2020.

Implementation of Online Inspection

Bank made Inspection Online effective from
March 2019

This facilitates reducing the man-days to
complete the inspection and increases the
transparency.

Also, Bank has backup of data readily avail-
able in the system including history.

Deployment of PoS Terminals at Merchant
Establishments (PoS Acquirer)

Bank implemented merchant PoS terminals
in June 2018 with the help of the Sponsor
Bank

Branches can increase low cost deposits
from new/existing current account holders
by offering PoS terminals at their commer-
cial establishments.

SMS Alerts:

SMS alerts were introduced for the benefit of the
Customers. Besides transaction alerts, loan install-
ment due notice, OD account due date reminder,
reminder for submission of stock statement,
Deposit maturity advice etc. are sent to the
Customers. Eleven types of Alerts are sent to the
Customers

Tracking financial transactions as and when
they occur

Instant alerts for the payments and withdraw-
als

Receiving a deposit reference description
when money is deposited

Reminding Information about all purchases
and withdrawals

Receiving notifications of all transfer transac-
tions

Identifying any un-authorized transactions in
the account.

Expiry of stock statement

CC/OD limit expiry

Loan installments due

Locker Rent due

Deposit maturity date due
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Mobile Banking & IMPS:

APGB is the first RRB permitted by RBI for intro-
ducing Mobile Banking. Successfully delivering the
hasslefree services to the Customers since
20.08.2015. IMPS facility was also enabled in the
service. The Bank on-boarded to IMPS as a direct
member with NPCI. The existing mobile banking
service is available for the customers having
Andriod & iOS based smart phones. Mobile Bank-
ing & IMPS facility has been extended to 4,03,779
customers as on 31.03.2023. Mobile Banking
channel is bundled with Recharge and Utility pay-
ments service. Further, setting card limits as per
RBI directions has been implemented in the cur-
rent year.

Bank upgraded the mobile banking application in
the financial year 2021-22. This version consists
of features such as multi lingual support, card limit
setting, blocking etc.,

AEPS (Biometric-based ON-US):

Aadhaar Enabled Payment System provides bank-
ing facilities to rural customers and meets the ob-
jectives of Financial Inclusion. The Bank has been
extending AEPS service since 13.07.2015 to our
Bank's customers as well as other Banks' Cus-
tomers too. The service provides banking facilities
such as withdrawal, deposit, fund tranfer to third
party accounts and balance enquiry. Bank is using
its own FI-Gateway which is connected to NPCI
for carrying AEPS/biometric authentication. At
present, biometric transactions are successfully
supported at 995 micro-ATMs of the Bank. Rupay
Card transactions also have been performed on
our Micro ATMs at BC locations since 26.04.2016.
AEPS "ON US" v2.5 is implemented as per NPCI
norms with enhanced security features

AEPS (Biometric-based OFF-US):

An inter-bank (OFF-US) transaction is one where
other Banks' Customers can perform financial
transactions at our BC locations using AEPS. The
Bank has made live the AEPS Off-Us facility at BC
points on 12.08.2016.

AEPS "OFF US" v2.5 is implemented as per NPCI
norms with enhanced security features

Tokenization:

Bank has implemented Tokenization of AADHAAR
as per Govt of India directions. This is implemented
in CBS by generating the tokens at FI gateway and
storing the same along with the Aadhaar number
ensuring secured AEPS transactions using
AADHAAR.

Billdesk (Internet Payment Gateway):

Bank has integrated with Billdesk Internet Payment
Gateway which helps in making the payments from
merchant web portals by authenticating the trans-
action using our Internet Banking credentials.

Billdesk (BillPay and Recharge through
BBPS):

Bank has integrated with BBPS, a service offered
by NPCI. This module helps in making the recharge
and Bill payments using Bank's Mobile Banking
Application and Internet Banking Portal.

Registered Devices (RD)

Bank has implemented Registered Devices con-
cept at all BC terminals and e-KYC devices at
Branches where all transactions are routed through
devices which are registered as per specified
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guidelines of UIDAI. Transactions taken place
through such devices capture the device specifi-
cations so that any un-wanted (or) misuse of de-
vices for transactions can be arrested.

E-Commerce

Bank facilitated e-Commerce transactions for the
Customers during May 2017 and Customers can
make purchases Online with our Bank RuPay Debit

Description Count of Transactions

ECOM 570085

POS 343532

MOBILE BANKING 988638

INTERNET BANKING 66183

INTERNET BANKING

Internet banking facility was extended on
August 2018.

Both Financial and Non-Financial Transac-
tions were enabled.

97,062 Customers are using the facility as
of March 31,2023.

Bank has made version upgradation in
Internet Banking where the following fea-
tures are present

1. Retail Banking for personal Customers and
Corporate Banking for non-personal cus-
tomers exists

2. Customized transaction limits can be set
as per the customer's worthiness/ require-
ment

3. IMPS facility is enabled for immediate fund
transfer

4. New look and feel and easy user interface
is developed for customer satisfaction

C-KYC

C-KYC, the centralized KYC-Customers' ID proofs
will be scanned and uploaded and a Unique ID is
generated for the customers which can be used
as a virtual proof for creation of account in any other
Bank and customers need not carry their identity
proof to the Bank for creation of account in respec-
tive Bank. C-KYC is launched in the month of No-
vember 2017.

UPI

UPI (Unified payment interface) is launched in the
Bank during November 2017, wherein customers
need not disclose the account details and can use

cards. Customers can perform Railway ticket book-
ings, shopping online from FLIPKART, Amazon etc.,

PoS (Point of Sale) Issuer

Bank enabled PoS facility to Customers in June
2015 and customers are utilizing RuPay Cards at
all Merchant Establishments.

Total Transactions in Various Alternate delivery
channels are as under;
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the virtual ID address for their transactions. With
UPI, transactions are seamless as the settlement
takes place within seconds. UPI also facilitates
transactions through USSD (Unstructured supple-
mentary Data, *99#) wherein customers need not

BIOMETRIC LOGIN

Bank has implemented Biometric login at Branches
as another security layer. In view of present sce-
nario, there should be at least two levels of au-
thentication/ security required to perform transac-
tions at branches. Hence, Biometric login will serve
as an additional mode of authentication by which
user has to invariably enter both password and use
Biometric for login in CBS. Biometric login is made
mandatory for all the Regular staff.

e-KYC

e-KYC is a service that fetches demographic data
of a customer from UIDAI, upon his/her consent
through finger-print authentication. The demo-
graphic data is used for creating Customer  Identi-
fication File  in CBS with little manual intervention.
The service helps in faster opening of accounts
as well as meeting the KYC requirements. For
capturing finger-print data, the Bank has procured
600 nos. of finger-print reader terminals. The Bank
has implemented the service on 12.10.2015. The
service is also useful to ascertain the correctness
of the identification details of existing customers.
This facility is extended to Business correspon-
dents also

Missed-call banking

A customer who has registered his/her mobile num-
ber in CBS, has been provided with Missed-call
banking facility. Customer can dial 9266921358,
round the clock, to get the outstanding balance of
his/her savings account in the form of SMS to his/
her mobile. The service was launched on
05.11.2015.

RuPay Card Integration on Micro ATMs

Successfully integrated on 07/05/2016

The Bank has procured its own HSM and
placed in the DC.

The HSM is used to generate terminal keys
for all the micro-ATMs of all the RRBs with-
out dependency on Sponsor Bank.

CTS 2010

CTS 2010 is made live w.e.f.01.04.2016.

Bank is participating in CTS with the asso-
ciation of HDFC.

Description Txns Count Amount in Crores

IMPS 4040037  3468

UPI 161366884 34732

have smart phones, can perform transactions
through basic phones with pre-defined commands.
UPI 2.0 is also launched in Financial year 2019-20
which provides facilities such as usage of OD ac-
count for fund transfer.

Below is the count of IMPS & UPI during FY 2022-23 :
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Offsite Monitoring

Bank has "Offsite Monitoring Cell" at Head Office.
Introduced daily, weekly and monthly alert Reports
as a part of Offsite Monitoring. Offsite monitoring
cell monitors unusual transactions and alert the
concerned branches. Offsite monitoring cell has
generated some useful reports to monitor the work-
ing of Branch in various parameters so as to check
whether the Branch is functioning as per specified
guidelines. Off-site monitoring has been de-cen-
tralized to Regional Office level to arrest any po-
tential loss and also to identify the un-authorized
transactions immediately.

Audio/Video Conference

Bank tied up with vendor for Audio cum Video con-
ference with the branches for effective monitoring.
This enabled the Bank to review various business
parameters.

PFMS (CPSMS)

Public Financial Management System (PFMS) ini-
tially started as a Plan scheme named CPSMS
(Central Plan Scheme Monitoring System) of the
Planning Commission in 2008-09 for four Flagship
schemes e.g. MGNREGS, NRHM, SSA and
PMGSY. It has been decided to undertake National
rollout of CPSMS (PFMS) to link the financial net-
works of Central, State Governments and the agen-
cies of State Governments. CPSMS, now PFMS,
has been made live in the Bank in the month of
November 2013. The Scheme has established a
common transaction-based on-line fund manage-
ment, payment system and MIS for the Plan
Scheme of Government of India. The Bank is shar-
ing transaction details of Govt. related accounts in
real-time without any delay.

Anti Money Laundering (AML) Solution

The objective of KYC/AML guidelines is to prevent
banks from being used, intentionally or unintention-
ally, by criminal elements for money laundering or
terrorist financing activities. KYC producers also
enable bank to know/understand their customers
and their financial dealings better, which in turn help
them manage their risk prudently.

As per the directions from GoI, AML has been imple-
mented by the Bank. AML services are offered by
the CBS service provider with an effective inter-
face with Bank's CBS. The CBS service provider,
M/s C-Edge Technologies Limited, is extending the
service support for implementation of the AML on
ASP model.

Integration with PFMS portal as per FCRA

Bank has successfully integrated with PFMS por-
tal where in all details of foreign remittances will
be shared with Govt. of India as per FCRA regula-
tions. We are the first RRB to integrate this suc-
cessfully.

Developments in CBS

Bank has implemented many changes in CBS in
the present financial year, few of which are men-
tioned as under:

Automated NPA provisions calculation in CBS

Upgraded version of CBS from branch
dependent to the concept of centralized server

Implemented service charges within
system such as cash handling, duplicate state-
ment, gold pre closure charges etc.,
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Nomination facility introduced for locker
accounts in CBS& implemented Auto SMS trig-
ger to locker customers whenever any locker
operations are performed.

Infrastructure support to the branches

Bank provided infrastructure support to the
branches in the financial year 2022-23 for effec-
tive usage for day to day operations. Procured 900
All in one PCs with latest operating system and
distributed across the bank for having video con-
ference and business review through the same.
Existing PCs at the branches were also upgraded
to latest operating system of windows (10). Also,
supplied Micro ATMs to all the branches for push-
ing digital transactions at the branch terminal.  Also,
branches were provided with latest technology
printers and UPS units for better customer ser-
vice without any interruptions.

Publicity & Awareness programs

Posters on deposit and loan products were
supplied to branches to keep in ATM rooms.
Ensured that these posters are pasted in
ATM rooms.

Posters on Digital Banking were prepared
and supplied to branches

Advertisements are also given in electronic
& print media.

Bank is using website www.apgb.in and social
media tools - facebook and twitter for displaying
important content for the use of customers and
well-wishers.

FACE LIFT TO THE BRANCHES

Branch Premises

To ensure availability of basic infrastructure and
proper ambiance, branches are periodically
supplied with necessary equipment. Accordingly,
14 branches were provided with new counters &
12 existing counters were modified. All branches
were provided with water dispensers and invert-
ers. During the Year, the Bank has provided 90
Digitalized Security Alarms, 214 NVR Based CCTV
Systems, 154 Loose cash counting Machines, 201
Mix Value Counting Machines, 28 Bundle Note
counting Machines, Strong Room doors to 12
Branch Premises, 105 new inverters and 16 new
lockers to the branches.

The Bank has provided suitable infrastructure to
the Sarala Runa Kendras (SRKs) in all the Re-
gions

Own Buildings

Bank is having 33 Praja Bhavans. The public have
constructed and donated them to the Bank. Apart
from these, Bank owns 3 buildings. They are the
Administrative Building of Head Office Kadapa,
Regional Office Anantapur and Pathikonda Branch
Buildings. The District-wise position of Praja
Bhavans and own buildings are furnished in the
table given as under:
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Of which reconstruction process of our
Gargeyapuram & Tangutur Branches is initiated.
The L1 Bidder was finalized for construction of
Prajabhavanam building at Gargeyapuram and
work is to be started. Repairs of our Pathikonda
Branch, Gospadu and Korrapadu has been com-
pleted. Repair work of our Chityala, Garladinne
branches is entrusted to the contractor.

Head Office, Kadapa

Sl. No.      District  Praja Bhavans Own Buildings     Total
1 Anantapuramu 2 1 3

2 Sri Satya Sai 0 0 0

3 YSR Kadapa 9 1 10

4 Annamayya 2 0 2

5 Kurnool 14 1 15

6 Nandyal 6 0 6

7 SPSR Nellore 0 0 0

8 Bapatla 0 0 0

9 Tirupati 0 0 0

10 Prakasam 0 0 0

Total 33 3 36

Five Mobile Demonstration (ATM) Vans procured
during the Financial Year at the cost of Rs. 68.21
lakh under the support of FITF NABARD Scheme.
Cash Van services were provided for Kadapa Re-
gion and Finalized the vendor for the remaining
regions, for better cash Management at Branches
/ Regional Offices.
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Safe Deposit Locker Facility

Safe Deposit Lockers are provided to the branches
as a part of customer service and also to improve
income for the Bank. During the year, Bank has
provided 2 new safe deposit locker facilities in-
creasing the total branches to 217 and no. of locker
cabinets to 519. Bank has migrated to online locker
module which will facilitate review of locker vacan-
cies and rental arrears.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Bank has continued to maintain good house-
keeping and internal control during the year 2022-
23. Risk Based Internal Audit was conducted in 445
Branches from 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023 against
the target of 441 Branches in eTHIC online Inspec-
tion module by Internal Inspecting Officers.

NABARD Statutory Inspection with reference to its
financial position as on 31 March 2022 was con-
ducted from 05 September 2022 to 22 Septem-
ber 2022.

DESCRIPTION 2021-22 2022-23

LOW RISK 541 520

MEDIUM RISK 11 30

HIGH RISK NIL 2

VERY HIGH RISK NIL NIL

NEW BRANCHES (NOT INSPECTED) NIL NIL

Total No of Branches 552 552

THE RBIA RISK RATINGs OF eTHIC INSPECTED BRANCHES IS AS FOLLOWS:

The Bank has also conducted Preventive Vigilance
Exercise (PVE), Compliance Audit & Concurrent
Audits of Branches during the year 2022-23.

VIGILANCE MATTERS

An independent Vigilance Cell is constituted at
Head Office, which is headed by a General Man-
ager deputed from Sponsor Bank who is being
assisted by one Investigating Officer. The Cell is
functioning under the direct control and supervi-
sion of the Chairman. Further, the functioning of
Vigilance Cell is also monitored/reviewed by the
Vigilance Department of Sponsor Bank. Due to ef-
fective functioning of Vigilance Cell and timely con-
duction of Preventive Vigilance Exercises, many
frauds have been either detected or averted.  Wher-
ever frauds have occurred, timely action has been

initiated for recovery of amounts besides filing of
complaints with Police Authorities. Vigilance De-
partment is functioning with the objective of mini-
mizing the incidence of frauds in the Bank.

The following are the major highlights of the Vigi-
lance Department

We have recovered an amount of Rs 130.00
lakhs, which is outstanding fraud amount in
Vaddirala and Rly kondapuram branches and
made the fraud liability Zero.

Out of the 37 outstanding fraud cases, we have
recovered the total outstanding fraud amount
in 18 branches and made the fraud liability Zero.
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Walkathon on the eve of Vigilance Awareness Week

During this Financial year, one of the outstand-
ing fraud cases was closed with the permis-
sion of NABARD.

Vigilance Awareness Week was conducted from
31st October 2022 (Monday) to 06th November  2022
(Sunday) with the theme "Corruption free India
for a developed Nation 

" among the employees of the Bank. On
31.10.2022, the staff of our Head Office along with

the staff of Regional Office & local branches of
Kadapa town conducted Walkathon programme in
Kadapa town to propogate the message of Vigi-
lance Awareness Week. Further, Awareness
Grama Sabhas were conducted by our Rural and
Semi Urban branches in Grama Panchayats and
the Villages, Farmers, SHG members, Senior citi-
zens etc., have participated in the Grama Sabhas.
The activities conducted by the ROs/ Branches
were widely covered in the print and electronic
media.

BANKING OMBUDSMAN SCHEME

The Bank has adopted the Banking Ombudsman
Scheme-2006 & Integrated Ombudsman Scheme
2021 and wide publicity is given about the scheme
through the branches. During the year, the Bank

has received 69 complaints and all the complaints
have been disposed-off without any monetary im-
plications.
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Sl. No.                                               Particulars Details

A No of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year NIL

B No of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year NIL

C No of awards implemented during the year NIL

D No of unimplemented awards at the close of the year NIL

COMPLAINTS

Bank received 61 complaints from the general pub-
lic during the year 2022-23, involving various is-
sues such as delay in opening/closing of accounts,
deficiency in customer service, discourteous be-
havior of staff members etc. All the complaints re-
ceived were reviewed by the General Manager and
the Chairman. After receipt of complaints, remarks/
reports are being called for from the Regional Of-
fices/ branches and investigation was made, wher-
ever felt necessary. Basing on the findings/reports/
remarks, necessary action was taken to resolve
the issues. Out of 61 Complaints received, 59 com-
plaints have been disposed and the remaining 2
complaints are under investigation.

BOARD

The Board of the Bank is constituted by

(a) Chairman of the Bank (Chairman of the
Board).

(b) Two Non-Official directors appointed by Gov-
ernment of India.

(c) One nominee director each from Reserve
Bank of India and NABARD.

(d) Two nominee directors from Sponsor Bank.

(e) Two nominee directors from State Govern-
ment of A.P.

Board Meeting Rules stipulate that the Board meets
minimum six times a year, at least once in a quar-
ter. Minimum quorum for the Board Meeting to
transact business is four directors and no meet-
ing was adjourned for want of quorum.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following were inducted on the Board of Di-
rectors of the Bank during the year 2022-23 in the
place of the outgoing Directors.

AWARDS PASSED BY THE BANKING OMBUDSMAN
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1. Sri D. Sarath Chand,
Asst General Manager,
Reserve Bank of India,
Financial Inclusion and Development
Department,
Andhra Pradesh Regional Office,
HYDERABAD.

2. Dr K.V.S.Prasad,
Deputy General Manager,
National Bank for Agriculture &
Rural Development,
Andhra Pradesh Regional Office,
1-1-61 RTC "X" Roads, Musheerabad,
HYDERABAD - 500 002.

Sri K.Rajendra Prasad,
Asst. General Manager,
Financial Inclusion and
Development Department,
Reserve Bank of India,
HYDERABAD

Sri B.Ramesh Babu,
Deputy General Manager,
National Bank for Agriculture &
Rural Development,
Amaravati Cell,
VIJAYAWADA.

Reserve Bank of
India

NABARD

BOARD MEETINGS

Six Board Meetings were conducted during the year 2022-23 and in all 376 Board Notes were discussed in
the six Board Meetings.

Sl. No. Date of the Board Meeting No. of Notes put up to the Board
1 26.04.2022   07

2 21.06.2022   66

3 22.09.2022   80

4 21.10.2022   43

5 23.12.2022   55

6 14.03.2023 125

Total 376

Sl. No. Name of the Incoming Director Name of the Outgoing
Director

Nominee of
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Attendance of Board Members

1. Sri Rakesh Kashyap Chairman Sponsor Bank 6

2. Non Official Director-Vacant* - - -

3. Non Official Director-Vacant* - - -

4. Sri K.V.V.Satyanarayana, Secretary to Govt Government of 1
IRAS., Finance (B&IF), Department, Andhra Pradesh

Government of Andhra
Pradesh, Guntur.

5. Sri V Vijay Rama Raju, IAS District collector, Kadapa Government of 0
 Andhra Pradesh

6. Sri K.Rajendra Prasad Asst. General Manager, Reserve Bank 3
Financial Inclusion and of India
Development Department,
Reserve Bank of India,
HYDERABAD.

7. Sri D Sarath Chand Asst. General Manager, Reserve Bank 2
Financial Inclusion and of India
Development Department,
Reserve Bank of India,
Andhra Pradesh Regional
Office, HYDERABAD.

8. Sri B.Ramesh Babu, General Manager, NABARD 1
NABARD - Amaravati
Cell, VIJAYAWADA

9. Dr K.V.S.Prasad Deputy General Manager, NABARD 4
National Bank for Agriculture
& Rural Development,
Andhra Pradesh Regional
Office, HYDERABAD

10. Sri A Murali Krishna General Manager, LB & Sponsor Bank 6
RRB Wing, Canara Bank,
Head Office (Annexe),
2nd Cross, Gandhi Nagar,
BENGALURU - 560009

11. Smt K Kalyani General Manager, Sponsor Bank 5
Canara Bank, Circle Office,
Vijayawada

Name Designation
Sl.
No.

Representing
Institution

No. of meetings
attended during

the year
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*The term of Govt. of India nominee directors have
completed during May, 2016 and proposals were
sent to Govt. of India through NABARD/Sponsor
Bank for fresh appointment of directors. New ap-
pointments are yet to be made by Govt. of India
and presently these two posts are vacant.

BANK'S WEBSITE

Bank is having a dedicated website https://
www.apgb.in/

BRIHASPATHI TECHNOLIGIES is the organi-
zation maintaining our website for all updates.

Domain Hosting is performed by
"HOSTGATOR".

In Bank's website, Interest rates of all types of
Deposits & Loans are updated from time to
time

All products like Deposits, Loans and other
important information useful for Customers are
updated from time to time.

Tenders floated by the bank are updated in the
website from time to time.

Unclaimed deposits of the customers of our
Bank are also featured in the Bank's website
facilitating the customers for claiming the de-
posits.

Complaint redressal mechanism is featured
in the website where customers will be able to
know whom to approach in case of dissatis-
faction of customer service.

Complaints, Feedback, Online Loan & Griev-
ance Redressal forms are available in the
website for customer's use.

Branch details like Address and contact num-
ber are provided in the website for customer's
use.

Other important features of Bank website are
links of important Govt. Regulatory agencies,
Bank Business details, alternate delivery chan-
nels facilitated by the Bank, etc.

Manpower Planning / Assessment:

Manpower Assessment is being arrived at, as per
the Mitra Committee recommendations commu-
nicated by NABARD/GOI and approved by the
Board.   Bank is filling up the vacancies by way of
Direct Recruitment through IBPS and by way of
conducting Internal Promotions with due approval
from the Board.

While assessing the Man Power requirement for
the coming 5 years, linking our strategic and busi-
ness plans, Bank is taking the following assump-
tions into consideration.

1. Business Growth : It is assuming that the
business growth is 15% to 20% for the next 5
years.

2. Up gradation of Branches : It is assuming
that

a. 60% of Category-A branches of current year
may move to Category-B branches for the next
year.

b. 20% of Category-B branches of current year
may move to Category-C branches for the next
year.

c. 10-15 branches of Category-C of the current
year may move to Category-D branches for
the next year.

3. Retirements: Bank is taking the actual No. of
retirements falling under each cadre during the
financial year while arriving at the requirement
of Manpower, likewise for next five years.

4. Attrition: It is assuming that the attrition rate
is @5% every year in the mode of resigna-
tions, deaths and other reasons, except retire-
ments.

5. Specialist Officers:  It is assuming that the
Bank need some specialist officers like IT Of-
ficer, Law Officer, Charted Accountant, Mar-
keting Officer, Treasury Officer etc., keeping
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in view the future requirements.

6. Promotions: Bank has initiated internal pro-
motions for the year 2022-2023 and the de-

Human Resources Development & Imparting
Training to the staff members:

HR can develop business and increase Profitabil-
ity.  Many business leaders regard it as a depart-
ment designed to provide new employee orienta-
tion and take care of laborious paperwork.

Human Resources Development

In reality, HR plays a bigger role than most people
think. In fact, HR can increase profitability and im-
prove Bank's bottom line in several ways.

Insightful HR Statistics - Research from a busi-
ness and legal resources indicates that, "60% of

executives are beginning to see that HR can part-
ner with other departments to increase the profit-
ability and value of a business." The outdated no-
tion that HR is just meant for processing paper-
work has given way, to an understanding that it
actually plays a vital role in the strategic develop-
ment of a business as well as its company cul-
ture.

Another extensive study found that investment in
HR by just 10% would boost gross profits by nearly
30%. When employees are given adequate train-
ing and equipped with the right tools, they can per-
form their jobs more effectively and become more
productive.

Direct Internal Direct Internal
Recruitment Promotions Recruitment Promotions

Officer Scale V - 4 0 4

Officer Scale IV - 4 0 11

Officer Scale III - 44 0 35

Officer Scale II - 50 20 80

Officer Scale I 85 71 55 161

Office Assistant 83 - 10 -

Office Attendant - - - -

tails of staff promoted from cadre-to-cadre are
as under:

Staff Training Programme at APIBM,
Anantapuramu

Rewards and Recognitions for Best performers

Cadre
2021-22 2022-23
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HR plays a key role in the on boarding process
and can take measures to ensure that new hires
get the training they need and are ready to perform
their jobs at the highest level possible.  Employee
engagement is directly linked to motivation. Highly
motivated employees tend to be more motivated
and therefore more productive.

Imparting Training to the staff members

The Bank has been bestowing more attention on
Human Resources Development by deputing the
staff members to various internal as well as exter-
nal training programmes for enriching their knowl-
edge levels and skill development.  The Bank is
having its own Training Institute i.e. Andhra Pragathi
Institute of Bank Management (APIBM) at Head
Office, Kadapa and at Regional Office,
Ananthapuramu.

The two training centers are conducting trainings
on Diversification of Credit, Investment in Agri.
Credit, Marketing, Internal Control, Management

Development, Branch Management, Recovery
Management, Orientation/Refresher programmes,
Pre-promotion training programmes to SC/ST cat-
egories etc., apart from imparting training on CBS
operations, keeping in view the technology-driven
changes that are taking place from time to time.
In all the said training programmes, sessions on
KYC/AML, Customer Relations, Code of Bank's
Commitment to Customers, Financial Inclusion,
Cyber Security, New Age Skills are made manda-
tory and more focus is being made on the above
said matters to the staff members during the
course of training programmes.

Apart from the above, the Bank is nominating staff
members to external premier training institutes like,
CIBM: Manipal, BIRD: Lucknow, BIRD: Mangalore,
RBI CAB: Pune, etc., so as to get exposure to the
important developments being taken place in the
Banking Industry from time to time.

The details of cadre-wise staff trained during 2022-
23 are as under:

Officers 1945 1699 159 95.52

Office Asst. 637 691 8 110.00

Office Attend. 100 91 - 91

Total 2682 2481 167 98.73

Implementation of Pension Scheme - 2018 in
the Bank:

01. Pursuant to the order dated 25-04-2018 of
the Hon'ble Supreme Court in SLP (C) -
39288/2012 regarding grant of Pension to the
employees of RRBs and as per the direc-
tions given by the DFS, MoF, GoI vide its let-
ter dt.23-10-2018, Bank has adopted APGB
(Employees') Pension Regulations - 2018

and implementing the same.

02. APGB Pension Fund Trust and APGB Provi-
dent Fund Trust were formed in the wake of
the implementation of Pension Scheme -
2018 with the approval of the Board given
through BBC No.01/2019, dt.10-01-2019 and
BBC No.02/2019, dt.22-02-2019 and in terms
of the Pension Regulations the required
Trustees were also appointed.

Cadre
Cadre-wise staff as on

31-03-2023
Training Imparted % of staff

trainedInternal External
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03. Submitted applications to the EPFO, Kadapa
for Pension Fund exclusion and PF exclu-
sion in the prescribed Formats as suggested
by NABARD and the same is awaited.

04. Submitted applications to IT Authorities for
approval of Pension Fund and Provident Fund
in the prescribed Formats and got the same
for both 'APGB (Employees') Pension Fund'
and 'APGB (Employees') Provident Fund'.

05. Bank started payment of superannuation/
Family pension and commutation to the re-
tirees w.e.f 01-04-2018.

06. Bank has paid an amount of Rs.52.98 crores
as Pension/Pension arrears and Rs.12.51
crores as commutation and received Em-
ployer portion of Provident Fund amount of
Rs.5.44 crores from Pensioners during the
financial year 2022-23.

07. Bank has made a Provision to the tune of
Rs.1272.23 Crores towards Pension Fund,
from the Profits of the Bank up to 31-03-2023
and Rs.1121.85 crores Pension Fund has
been invested with LIC and other Investors.

08. In the wake of the instructions from NABARD,
Bank has stopped remitting of monthly con-
tributions of Employees' and Bank's to the
EPFO and routing the monthly contributions
of the Employees' contributions to the Provi-
dent Fund maintained by the Bank and
Bank's contributions to the Pension Fund for
Pension eligible Employees i.e. who joined
before 01.04.2010 and (both Employees and
Bank's contributions) to National Pension
System (NPS) for Employees' who joined on
or after 01.04.2010 from the month of Feb-
ruary 2020.

VRS Scheme:

Pursuant to the order dated 25-04-2018 of the
Hon'ble Supreme Court in SLP (C) - 39288/2012
regarding grant of Pension to the employees of
RRBs, DFS, MoF, GoI vide its letter F.No.8/20/2010-
RRB dt.23-10-2018 communicated the approval
of Model RRB (Officers' and Employees') Service
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and Model Re-
gional Rural Bank (Employees') Pension Regula-
tions, 2018 through NABARD and Sponsor Bank.
The same has been adopted by Bank with due
approval of the Board.

Regulation 27 of the Andhra Pragathi Grameena
Bank (Employees') Pension Regulations 2018,
enables the Employees to seek Voluntary Retire-
ment and the Regulation highlights the following
among the other points to be eligible to opt for Vol-
untary Retirement;

Employee who has completed 20 years of
qualifying service.

Notice not less than three months in writing.

The qualifying service of an employee shall
be increased by a period not exceeding 5
years, subject to that the total qualifying ser-
vice shall not in any case exceed 33 years
and it does not take him beyond the date of
Superannuation.

Implementation of Viability Plan:

Pursuant to the directions of DFS, GOI vide letter
No.: F.No.7/7/2022-RRB dt 13.09.2022, Bank has
launched the Board Approved Viability Plan with a
3-year Strategic Roadmap on 02.10.2022 com-
memorating the birth anniversary of father of the
nation, Mahatma Gandhi, with a view to ensure all-
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round development so as to suit the emerging
needs of the market & position itself ahead of peer
RRBs of the country.

In pursuit of matching with the viability plan require-
ments, Bank has implemented the following
projects/ new initiatives during the intervening pe-
riod  to upscale the Bank's performance in line with
viability road map & steer towards a steady growth
with enhanced profitability, to make it viable on sus-
tainable basis.

Sarala Runa Kendras (Asset Management
Hubs)

Diversification of Business-Introduction of high
value- "Platinum SB account"

Premium Current Account & Platinum Current
Account

CTS clearing

Centralized TDS system

APGB DIGI Khata (Digital Instant Savings Ac-

count-DISA)

Online FD through Mobile Banking App

UPI registration through Aadhaar OTP

Dual Interface (Tap & Go) Cards

QR Codes

SWIFT facility

In House -Employee suggestion portal

e-Office Note

Enabling AePS OFFUS Cash Deposit

Adoption of new age skills: e-learning Module
for Staff and Knowledge Management Tool

Social Banking- WhatsApp Banking.

Further, many more such initiatives envisioning
enhanced performance of the Bank are in pipeline
& set to be implemented in staggered manner within
the timelines.

Launch of Viability Plan of the Bank and Staff suggestion portal commemorating
Gandhi Jayanthi, 02nd, October 2022
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PERFORMANCE OF THE BANK AT A GLANCE
                                  (Rs. in Crores)

Sl. No. Parameter  2021-22 2022-23

1. No. of districts covered 5 10

2. No. of Branches 552 552

a. Rural 326 326

b. Semi-urban 144 144

c. Urban 82 82

d. Metropolitan -- --

No. of Extension Counters -- --

No. of Regional Offices 8 8

3. Total Staff 2715 2682

Of Which Officers 1791 1945

4. Deposits 19127.53 19791.77

% Growth 3.77 3.47

5. Borrowings Outstanding 5570.37 4592.56

% Growth 3.37 -17.55

6. Gross Loans & Advances Outstanding 20129.42 21863.60

% Growth 10.55 8.62

Of '6' above loans to SF/MF/AL 10216.02 11635.21

Of '6' above loans to Priority Sector 18806.03 19922.60

Of '6' above loans to Minorities 2250.47 2661.95

7. C.D. Ratio 105.23 110.47

8. Investments Outstanding 4263.38 3758.73

% Growth -5.15% -11.84

SLR investments 4222.60 3717.94

Non-SLR Investments 40.79 40.79

9. Average Deposits 18149.59 18201.59

% Growth 7.08 0.29

10. Average Borrowings 5739.88 6239.30

% Growth 18.91 8.70
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Sl. No. Parameter 2021-22 2022-23

11. Average Gross Loans & Advances 18928.89 20550.03

% Growth 15.47 8.56

12. Average Investments 4572.53 3951.71

% Growth -1.32 -13.58

Average SLR investments as % to Average Deposits 24.97 21.71

Average Non-SLR Investments as % to Average Deposits 0.22 0.22

13. Average Working Funds 27898.16 29212.02

14. Loans Issued during the year 18507.02 19115.34

Of '14 above Loans to SF/MF/AL 8927.92 9564.89

Of '14' above Loans to SC/ST 2280.52 2351.19

Of '14' above Loans  to Minorities 2206.36 2274.73

Of '14' above loans to Priority Sector 15999.13 17739.31

15. Per branch productivity 71.12 75.46

Per staff 14.46 15.53

16. Recovery performance as per June  DCB

Demand 10500.89 15751.55

Recovery 9126.48 14439.92

Overdues 1374.42 1331.63

Recovery (%) - June  position 87 91.67

17 FARM SECTOR

Demand 8996.74 11356.58

Recovery 7820.60 10559.53

Overdues 1176.14 797.04

Recovery (%) -  June  position 87 92.98

18 NON-FARM SECTOR

Demand 1504.15 4394.98

Recovery 1305.87 3880.89

Overdues 198.28 514.59

Recovery (%) -  June  position 87 88.29

19. a. Standard Assets 19833.04 21568.33
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Sl. No. Parameter 2021-22 2022-23

b. Sub-Standard Assets 100.13 87.30

c. Doubtful Assets 148.26 160.71

d. Loss Assets 47.99 47.65

Total Assets 20129.42 21863.60

20. Standard Asset as % to Gross Loans & Advances 98.53 98.65

PROFITABILITY ANALYSIS

21. Interest paid on

a. Deposits 852.68 847.52

b. Borrowings 265.44 286.93

22. Salaries to staff 597.65 473.37

23. Other operating expenses 181.62 184.81

24. Provisions made during the year 393.50 477.07

25. Interest Received on

a. Loans and Advances 1755.62 1937.57

b. Current A/C  with Canara Bank/Other Banks

c. Investments and approved securities 350.01 277.94

d. Non-SLR Investments 3.33 3.37

e. Balances with other Banks 143.21 184.88

26. Miscellaneous Income 455.61 461.09

27. Profit (+)/Loss(-) 416.89 595.15

OTHER INFORMATION

28. Share Capital Deposit Received 0 0

29. DICGC 0 0

a. Claims received -Cumulative 0 0

b. Claims  received but pending for Adjustment 0 0

c. Claims Pending with Corporation 0 0

30. Cumulative Provision

a. Against NPAs/Standard  Assets 372.35 368.91

b. Against intangible assets/frauds 2.05 1.93

c. Investments/others 0 0
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Sl. No. Parameter 2021-22 2022-23
31. Interest De-recognized

a. During the year 22.16 20.52

b. Cumulative 137.00 157.52

32. Loans - Written off during the year

a. Accounts 6 0

b. Amount 0.0003 0.00

33. Accumulated Loss 0 0

34. Total Reserves 3151.76 3746.92
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The President of India,
New Delhi.

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Andhra Pragathi GrameenaBank,
Kadapa, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2023, the Profit and Loss Account and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in which are included
returns for the year ended on that date of

25 branches & 8 Regional Offices audited
by us and

301 branches audited by statutory branch
auditors.

(Please see Para4 Emphasis of Matter sec-
tion of our Report)

The branches audited by us and those au-
dited by other auditors have been selected
by the Bank in accordance with the guide-
lines issued to the Bank by the National Bank
for Agriculture and Rural Development.  Also,
included in the Balance Sheet, the Profit and
Loss Account and Statement of Cash Flows
are the returns from 226 branches which
have not been subjected to audit. These
unaudited branches account for 24.63% of
advances,35.10% of deposits, 27.49% of
interest income and 36.80 % of interest
expenses.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, and
inconformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in India,

A. The Balance Sheet, read with the notes there
on is a full and fair Balance Sheet containing
all the necessary particulars, is properly
drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31
March 2023;

B. The Profit and Loss Account, read with the
notes thereon shows a true balance of profit
for the year ended on that date; and

C. The Cash Flow Statement gives a true and
fair view of the cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by ICAI. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the bank in accor-
dance with the code of ethics issued by the Insti-
tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements, in India and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accor-
dance with these requirements and the code of
ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw attention to

a.  We have noticed that the income accrued re-
lated following ledgers has not been booked till 31
March 2023 has not been recognized in the books:

i. 71010000012-PMSBY Incentive-INR
1,89,000/-

ii. 95122000018-APY Incentive-INR 7,200/-

iii. 95081000011-UIDAI New Enrollment Update
Charges-INR 5,35,000/-

iv. 95082000010-UIDAI Mandatory Update
Charges-INR 12,17,000/-

b. Financial Inclusion expenses head has been
over booked by an amount of INR 1,76,015/-
as the same has been recovered from M/s
Atyati technologies Pvt. Ltd, but shown as
credit balance in GL.

c. TDS receivable on Dividend income of INR
48,516/- received from Canara Bank has not
been accounted, Dividend Income to that
extent has been under booked.

d. TCS collected of INR 1,554 by Maruti Suziki
has been capitalized along with the car value.

e. Dividend Income received from Canara Bank
has been booked under Interest Income from
Non SLR Investments, New BGL should be
created.

f. NPA provision at the branch level is created as
per RBI regulations, however at HO level 100%
provision is created.

g. Expenditure incurred of INR 22,69,806/- on pur-
chase and fabrication of mobile ATM Vans has
been categorized as prepaid expenses, how-
ever the same should be categorized as Capital
Work in Progress.

h. At Amadagur branch (Branch Code: 1056),
fraud by Branch Manager (BM) has been iden-
tified in which BM was identified disbursing
animal husbandry loans to customers and
transferring the same back to his personal
accounts.

i. Accrued income in respect of NRLM Sub
vention amount receivable from NABARD has
been under booked by INR 2,95,29,278/-.

j. Balancing account is showing an excess credit
balance of INR 1,57,568/- due to double book-
ing of expenses.

k. Commission income on Health Insurance pre-
mium has been over booked by INR 4,50,000/
- as the conditions subsequent to sale have
not been satisfied as on 31 March 2023.

l. Interest Subvention is claimed excess in the
following 2 categories.

i. 2% Interest Subvention-INR 12,971/-
ii. 3% Interest Subvention-INR 10,992/-

m. Interest Subsidy related to Central Sector In-
terest Subsidy scheme has been short claimed
by INR 53,749/- during the audit period.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above
matters.
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Responsibilities of Management and those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

5. The Bank's management is responsible with re-
spect to the preparation of these financial state-
ments that give a true and fair view of the financial
position and financial performance of the Bank in
accordance with the Banking Regulation Act,1949
and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India ('RBI') from time to time. This respon-
sibility also includes maintenance of adequate ac-
counting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safe guarding of the assets of the
Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of ap-
propriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were op-
erating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appli-
cable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Bank
or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

6. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion.  Reason-
able assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accor-
dance with SAs will always detect a material missta
tement when it exists. Misstatements can a rise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reason-
ably be expected to influence the economic deci-
sions of users taken on the basis of these finan-
cial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain pro-
fessional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material mis-
statement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and ap-
propriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one re-
sulting from error, as fraud may involve collu-
sion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepre-
sentations, or the over ride of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of ac-
counting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Report that the audit at branch level is not be
able to conclude on the appropriateness of
management's use of the going concern ba-
sis of accounting and based on the audit evi-
dence obtained at branch, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
tions that may cast significant doubt on the
Bank's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the under lying transac-
tions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with gover-
nance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with rel-
evant ethical requirements regarding indepen-
dence, and to communicate with the mall relation-
ships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and where
applicable, related safe guards.

Other Matters

7. We did not audit the financial statements/infor-
mation, of 301 branches out of 326 audited
branches, included in the financial statements of
the Bank whose financial statements / financial
information comprises of total assets of
Rs.29174.02 crores as at 31.03.2023 and total
revenue of Rs.2864.86 crores for the year ended
on that date as considered in the financial state-
ments.

The financial statements / information of these
branches have been audited by the branch audi-
tors whose reports have been furnished to us and
in our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of branches,

is based solely on the report of such branch audi-
tors. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Further we draw attention to

a) During the audit of branches, we have noticed
that documentation is not proper where in case
of Vehicle loans, few necessary documents
that are mandatory as per the loan policy are
not collected from the customer & we further
noticed unfilled home loan agreements in few
branches.

b) We have noticed TDS defaults that are yet to
be addressed by the bank along with branch
staff.

c) We have noticed that cash in excess of the
retention limits is being carried in few branches.

d) We have noticed few cases where a loan has
been categorized as NPA on the very next day
of disbursal as the customer had a NPA ac-
count in the bank on a previous loan, we sug-
gest the bank to track all the active/defaulted
loans before disbursal of loans.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Re-
quirements

8. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Ac-
count have been drawn up in Forms "A" and "B"
respectively of the Third Schedule to the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949.

9. Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in
paragraphs 4 to 8 above, and subject also to the
limitations of disclosure required therein, we re-
port that:
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A. We have obtained all the information and ex-
planations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of our audit and have found them to be satis-
factory;

B. The transactions of the Bank, which have come
to our notice, have been within the powers of
the Bank; and

C. The returns received from the offices and
branches of the Bank have been found ad-
equate for the purposes of our audit.

10. We further report that:

A. In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Bank,
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and proper returns adequate for
the purposes of our audit have been received
from branches not visited by us.

B. The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss
Account and the Statement of Cash Flows deal
with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account and with the returns received
from the branches not visited by us.

C. The reports on the financial statements of the
branches audited by branch auditors of the
Bank have been sent to us and have been
properly dealt with by us in preparing this
report;

D. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit
and Loss Account and the Statement of Cash
Flows comply with the applicable accounting
standards, to the extent they are not in consis-
tent with the accounting policies prescribed by
RBI.

Place: Hyderabad            For Chowdary & Rao,
Date: 25th April 2023          Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.00656S

Sd/- xx xx
M. Sunil Kumar (Partner)

M No.217061
UDIN: 23217061BGQFNN9191
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BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2023

Schedule Rupees in Thousands
No 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL 1 423426 423426
RESERVES AND SURPLUS 2 37469191 31517639
DEPOSITS 3 197917692 191275350
BORROWINGS 4 45994699 55703774
OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 5 9935171 7575226

TOTAL 291740179 286495415

ASSETS

CASH AND BALANCES WITH RBI 6 13309006 12654779
BALANCES  WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND
SHORT NOTICE 7 38198202 24112841
INVESTMENTS 8 37587270 42633843
ADVANCES (Net) 9 195556903 198136097
FIXED ASSETS (Net) 10 448487 430411
OTHER ASSETS 11 6640311 8527444

TOTAL 291740179 286495415

Contingent Liabilities 12 567170 525404

Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx
(S. Ravi Kumar) (K. Vijaya Bhaskar)
Chief Manager General Manager

Sd/- xx xx
(Rakesh Kashyap)

Chairman

Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx
(Roopa VC) (Dr KVS Prasad)  (K KALYANI) (A MURALIKRISHNA)

Director  Director Director Director

 In terms of our report of even date attached.

Place: KADAPA For CHOWDARY & RAO.,
Date: 25 .04.2023 CHARTERED  ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No. 000656S

Sd/- xx xx
(Sunil Kumar) PARTNER

                                                                                                                   ICAI Membership 217061
                UDIN:23217061BGQFNN9191



87

ANDHRA PRAGATHI GRAMEENA BANK
Annual Report

2022 - 202317th

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

Schedule Rupees in Thousands

No     31.03.2023       31.03.2022

INCOME

Interest Earned 13 24037697 22521769
Other Income 14 4610895 4556115

TOTAL INCOME 28648592 27077884

EXPENDITURE

Interest Expended 15 11344465 11181176
Operating Expenses 16 6581864 7792774
Provisions and Contingencies 17 4770711 3935024

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 22697040 22908974
PROFIT/LOSS

Net Profit/Loss (-) for the Year 5951552 4168910
Profit/Loss (-) Brought Forward 24543607 21234479

TOTAL 30495159 25403389

APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to Statutory Reserves 1190310 833782
Transfer to IFR 0 26000
Balance Carried over to Balance Sheet 29304849 24543607
TOTAL 30495159 25403389

Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx
(S. Ravi Kumar) (K. Vijaya Bhaskar)
Chief Manager General Manager

Sd/- xx xx
(Rakesh Kashyap)

Chairman
Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx

(Roopa VC) (Dr KVS Prasad)  (K KALYANI) (A MURALIKRISHNA)
Director  Director Director Director

 In terms of our report of even date attached.

Place: KADAPA For CHOWDARY & RAO.,
Date: 25 .04.2023 CHARTERED  ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No. 000656S

Sd/- xx xx
(Sunil Kumar) PARTNER

                                                                                                                   ICAI Membership 217061
                UDIN:23217061BGQFNN9191
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SCHEDULE  1                                                         CAPITAL
Rs. in 000

                Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
I For Nationalised Banks

Capital ( Fully owned by Central Government)

II. For Banks Incorporated Outside India

1. Capital ( The amount brought by banks by way of startup
Capital as prescribed by RBI should be shown under this
head)

Total

III. For Other Banks

(1) Authorised Capital

     2000000000 shares of Rs.10/- each 20000000 20000000

(2) Issued Capital

          42342640 shares of Rs. 10/- each 423426 423426

(3) Subscribed Capital

  42342640 shares of Rs. 10/- each 423426 423426

(4) Called up  Capital

 42342640 shares of Rs. 10/- each 423426 423426

(5) Fully Paid up Capital

42342640 Shares of Rs.10/- each 423426 423426

IV Share Capital Deposit 0 0

TOTAL 423426 423426

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )
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SCHEDULE 2                                                        RESERVES
Rs. in 000

              Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
I. STATUTORY RESERVES

Opening Balance 6527302 5693520
Additions during the year 1190310 833782
Deductions during the year 0 0
TOTAL 7717612 6527302

II. CAPITAL RESERVES
Opening Balance 6730 6730
Additions during the year 0 0
Deductions during the year 0 0
TOTAL 6730 6730

III. SHARE PREMIUM
Opening Balance 0 0
Additions during the year 0 0
Deductions during the year 0 0
TOTAL 0 0

IV REVENUE & OTHER RESERVES
(i) REVENUE RESERVE

Opening Balance 0 0
Additions during the year 0 0
Deductions during the year 0 0
TOTAL 0 0

 (ii) INVESTMENT FLUCTUATION RESERVE (IFR)
Opening Balance 440000 414000
Additions during the year 0 26000
Deductions during the year 0 0
TOTAL 440000 440000

V. Balance in Profit & Loss Account 24543607 21234479
Add: Profit of FY 2022-23 5951552 4168910
Less: Profit transfer to Statutory Reserve 1190310 833782
Less: Profit transfer to IFR 0 26000
TOTAL 29304849 24543607
GRAND TOTAL ( I+II+III+IV+V) 37469191 31517639

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )
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SCHEDULE 3                                                        DEPOSITS
Rs.  in 000

                     Particulars 31.03.2023  31.03.2022

A.I. DEMAND DEPOSITS

i.) From Banks 0 0

ii.) From Others 2963101 3974044

II. SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS 70383315 61635733

III. TERM DEPOSITS

i.) From Banks 4950000 15900000

ii.) From Others 119621276 109765573

TOTAL ( A I,II & III) 197917692 191275350

B.I Deposits of branches in India 197917692 191275350

II. Deposits of branches outside India 0 0

TOTAL 197917692 191275350

SCHEDULES 4                                                    BORROWINGS
Rs.  in 000

                 Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I. BORROWINGS IN INDIA

i.) Reserve Bank of India 0 0

ii.) Canara Bank 0 0

iii) Other Institutions & Agencies 45994699 55703774

Total 45994699 55703774

II. BORROWINGS OUTSIDE INDIA 0 0

TOTAL ( I & II) 45994699 55703774

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )
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SCHEDULE 5                                                   OTHER LIABILITIES
Rs. in 000

               Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I. Bills Payable ( DDs payable+ Pay orders issued) 175725 191262

II. Inter Branch Adjustments 0 0

III. Interest Accrued 799718 606044

IV. Others 2175181 2737788

V Provisions 6784547 4040132

TOTAL 9935171 7575226

SCHEDULE-6                                    CASH AND BANK BALANCES WITH RBI
Rs.  in 000

              Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I Cash in Hand ( Including Foreign Currency Notes) 822783 973326

II Balances with Reserve Bank of India

i) In Current Account 7736223 6741453

ii) In Other Accounts 4750000 4940000

TOTAL 13309006 12654779

SCHEDULE - 7             BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICES

Rs. in 000

             Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I Balances with Banks

i) In Current Account 445702 710341

ii) In Other Deposit Accounts 37752500 23402500

TOTAL 38198202 24112841

II Money at Call & Short Notice 0 0

TOTAL ( I + II ) 38198202 24112841

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )
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CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )

SCHEDULES 8            INVESTMENTS
Rs. in 000

I INVESTMENTS IN INDIA

i.) Government Securities 37179410 42225983

ii.) Other approved Securities 0 0

iii) Shares 4990 4990

iv) Debentures & Bonds 402870 402870

v) Subsidiaries and /or Joint Ventures 0 0

vi) Others 0 0

TOTAL 37587270 42633843

31.03.202231.03.2023Particulars
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SCHEDULE  9                                                 GROSS ADVANCES
Rs. in 000

A. i) Bills purchased and discounted 0 0

ii) Cash Credits, Overdrafts & Loans repayable on demand 123646780 138416309

iii) Term Loans 74989224 62877906

TOTAL 198636004 201294215

B. i) Secured by Tangible Assets 196485913 153578777

ii) Covered by Bank / Govt. Guarantees 0 0

iii) Unsecured 2150091 47715438

TOTAL 198636004 201294215
C. 1. ADVANCES IN INDIA

i) Priority Sector 179226010 188060284

ii) Public Sector 0 0

iii) Banks 0 0

iv) Others 19409994 13233931

TOTAL 198636004 201294215

2.ADVANCES OUTSIDE INDIA

i) Due from Banks 0 0

ii) Due from others 0 0

a) Bills purchased and discsounted 0 0

b) Syndicate Loans 0 0

TOTAL 0 0

GROSS ADVANCES                     : 198636004 201294215
Less: Outstanding NPA Provision : 3079101 3158118

Less: Claims Received                 : 0 0

Net Advances                                : 195556903 198136097

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )

31.03.202231.03.2023Particulars
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SCHEDULE 10                                               FIXED ASSETS
Rs. in 000

I. Land (Own & Prajabhavans)

Additions during the year 0 0

Deductions during the year 0 0

Total 0 0

II. PREMISES

At cost as on 31st March of preceding year 158093 158336

Additions during the year 0 81

Deductions during the year 0 323

Depreciation to date 18731 16294

Total 139362 141800

III. OTHER FIXED ASSETS ( Including Furniture & Fittings)

At cost as on 31st March of the preceding year 1140454 1058077

Additions during the year 122059 119723

Deductions during the year 70955 37346

Depreciation to date 882433 851843

TOTAL 309125 288611

TOTAL ( I + II + III ) 448487 430411

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )

SCHEDULE 11                                                 OTHER ASSETS
Rs. in 000

I Inter-Office Adjustments 70039 30789
II Interest Accrued/Receivable 1265808 1236903
III Stationery and Stamps 720 648
IV Tax Paid ln Advance (Net of Provision) 0 35000
V Tax Deducted at Source 3047 3947
VI Deferred Tax 10010 11056
VII Others 5290687 7209101

TOTAL 6640311 8527444

31.03.202231.03.2023Particulars

31.03.202231.03.2023Particulars
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SCHEDULE 12                                           CONTINGENT LIABILITES
Rs. in 000

                Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I Claims against the Bank not ackonowledged as Debts 646 103833

II Liability on account of outstanidng Foreign Contracts 0 0

III Guarantees given on behalf of Constituents 93566 96638

IV Acceptances, Endorsements and other obligations 0 0

V Other Items for which the bank is contingently liable(DEA Fund) 471452 319348

VI TDS demand of the Branches as per TRACES 1506 5585

TOTAL 567170 525404

SCHEDULE 13      INTEREST EARNED
Rs. in 000

                 Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I Interest/Discount on Advances/Bills 19375704 17556239

II Income on Investments 2813189 3533401

III Interest on Balances with RBI & Other Inter Bank Funds 1848804 1432129

IV Others 0 0

TOTAL 24037697 22521769

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )
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               Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I. Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 102457 115241

II. Profit on Sale of Investments 3027 49198

Less: Loss on Sale of Investments 0 0

III Profit on sale of Land, Building, Vehicles & other Assets etc. 5218 406

Less: Loss on sale of Land, Building, Vehicle
& other Assets etc.                 -1414 -988

IV. Commission on Life Insurance 34847 27195

V. Recovery under Written of Loans 476 1548

VI. Inspection Charges 701818 684558

VII. Processing Charges 1177433 1157168

VIII Reversal of Excess Provision of Previous Year 1240 39667

IX Taxes Refund-Service Tax 27071 0

X Miscellaneous Income-PSLC 1571150 1744100

XI Miscellaneous Income-Others 987572 738022

TOTAL 4610895 4556115

CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )

SCHEDULE 14                                             OTHER INCOME
Rs. in 000

SCHEDULE-15                                             INTEREST EXPENDED
Rs. in 000

               Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I Interest on Deposits 8475172 8526802

II Interest on RBI / Inter Bank Borrowings 2869293 2654374

III Others 0 0

TOTAL 11344465 11181176
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CHIEF MANAGER   GENERAL MANAGER
  ( ACCOUNTS )

SCHEDULE 16                   OPERATING EXPENDITURE
Rs. in 000

               Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I Provisions for NPA 133070 495529

II Provisions for Income Tax 1991940 1568581

III Provisions for Deferred Tax 1046 1530

IV Provisions for Standard Assets 44655 69384

V Provisions for Rural Advances 2600000 1800000

TOTAL 4770711 3935024

SCHEDULE 17 PROVISIONS & CONTINGENCIES
Rs. in 000

                  Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

I Payment to and Provisions for Employees 4733727 5976538

II Traveling expenses 37301 26797

III Rent, Taxes and Lighting 144967 134242

IV Printing and Stationery 32818 19793

V Advertising and Publicity 1584 34

VI Depreciation on Bank Property 88425 67094

VII Directors fees, Allowances and Meeting Expenses 258 410

VIII Auditors Fees and Expenses 8888 5944

IX Law Charges 2297 1954

X Postage & Telephones etc. 10020 9587

XI CBS & Computer  Maintenance 305615 238162

XII Insurance 228977 211699

XIII Other Expenditure 986987 1100520

TOTAL 6581864 7792774
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Schedule.18

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.  Basis of Preparation

The Bank's financial statements are prepared
under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting ongoing concern basis,
unless otherwise stated and conform in all mate-
rial aspects to Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in India, which comprise appli-
cable statutory provisions, regulatory norms /
guidelines prescribed by the National Bank for Ag-
riculture and Rural Development (NABARD) / Re-
serve Bank of India (RBI), Banking Regulation Act
1949, Regional Rural Bank Act, 1976 and amend-
ments thereto and Accounting Standards issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI), and the practices prevalent in the banking
industry in India.

2.  Use of Estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements requires
the management to make estimates and assump-
tions considered in the reported amounts of As-
sets and Liabilities (including Contingent Liabilities)
as of the date of the Financial Statements and the
reported Income and expenses during the report-
ing period. Management believes that the estimates
used in the preparation of Financial Statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could dif-
fer from these estimates. Any revision to the ac-
counting estimates is recognized prospectively in
the current and future periods.

3. Revenue Recognition

3.1. Income and expenditure are accounted on
accrual basis except and as otherwise stated.

3.2. Interest income is recognized in the Profit and
Loss Account as it accrues except in cases
of income from non-performing assets
(NPAs), comprising of advances and invest-
ments, which is recognized upon realization,
as per the prudential norms prescribed by the
RBI/NABARD.

3.3. Profit / Loss on sale of investments is recog-
nized in the Profit and Loss Account.

3.4. Income (other than interest) on investments
in "Held to Maturity (HTM)" category acquired
at a discount to the face value is recognized
only at the time of sale / redemption.

3.5. All commissions, fee incomes and locker rents
are recognized on their realization except for
(i) Guarantee commission on deferred pay-
ment guarantees, which is spread over the
period of the guarantee, and (ii) Commission
on Government Business, which is recog-
nized as it accrues.

3.6. Income from dividend on shares accounted
for on accrual basis when the same is de-
clared and the right to receive the dividend is
established.

3.7. Lease payments including cost escalation for
assets taken on operating lease are recog-
nized in the profit and loss account over the
lease term in accordance with AS 19 issued
by ICAI.

3.8. With regard to interest on overdue term de-
posits, the Bank is creating a provision at the
rate specified by RBI from time to time.

3.9. In case of suit filed accounts, legal and other
expenses incurred are charged to profit and
loss account and at the time of recovery such
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expenses are accounted as income.

4. Investments

The transactions in Government Securities are
recorded on "Settlement Date". Investments other
than Government Securities are recorded on
"Trade Date".

4.1 Classification:

Investments are classified into three categories
viz., Held to Maturity (HTM), Available for Sale (AFS)
and Held for Trading (HFT) as per RBI guidelines.

a) ''Held to Maturity "(HTM) comprising invest-
ments acquired with the intention to hold them
till maturity.

b) ''Held for Trading'' comprising investments
acquired with the intention to trade by taking
advantage of short term price/ interest rate
movements. These are intended to be traded
within 90 days from the date of purchase.

c) ''Available For Sale'' comprising invest-
ments not covered by (a ) and ( b ) above i.e.
those investments which do not fall under in ''
Held to Maturity '' classification or "Held for
Trading'' classification.

In the Balance sheet, the investments are dis-
closed as per the following six classifications in
accordance with the guidelines of the Reserve
Bank of India:

(i) Government Securities
(ii) Other Approved Securities
(iii) Shares
(iv) Debentures and Bonds
(v) Subsidiaries and/or Associates
(vi) Others

4.2 Acquisition cost of investments

a) Brokerage, Commission, Securities Transac-
tions Tax (STT) etc, if any, paid in connection
with acquisition of investments are expensed
upfront and excluded from cost.

b) Broken period interest paid / received on debt
instrument is treated as interest expense /
income and is excluded from cost/sale con-
sideration.

c) Cost of investments is determined at weighted
average price method.

d) Incentive received on subscriptions is
deducted from the cost of securities.

4.3 Valuation

a) Investments classified as HTM are carried at
weighted average acquisition cost unless it is
more than the face value, in which case the
premium is amortized over the period remain-
ing to maturity, on constant yield basis. Such
amortization of premium is adjusted against
income under the head "Interest on Invest-
ments".

b) Transfer of securities from HFT/AFS category
to HTM category is carried out at the lower of
acquisition cost/book value or market value
on the date of transfer. The depreciation, if any,
on such transfer is fully provided for.  How-
ever, transfer of securities from HTM category
to AFS category is carried out on acquisition
price/book value. After transfer, these securi-
ties are immediately revalued and resultant
depreciation, if any, is provided.

c) Investments held under AFS and HFT are val-
ued as under:
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The above valuation in category of Available for Sale
and Held for trading is done scrip wise and depre-
ciation / appreciation is aggregated for each clas-
sification. Net depreciation for each classification,
if any, is provided for, while net appreciation is ig-
nored. On provision for depreciation, the book value
of the individual security remains unchanged after
mark to market.

4.4 Investments are classified as performing
and non-performing, based on the guidelines
issued by the RBI. Investments become non-
performing where:

a) Interest / installment (including maturity pro-
ceeds) is due and remains unpaid for more
than 90 days.

b) In case of equity shares, in the event, the in-
vestment in the shares of any company is
valued at Rs. 1 per company on account of
non-availability of the latest balance sheet;
those equity shares will be reckoned as NPI.

c) The investments in debentures / bonds which
are deemed to be in nature of advance are
also subjected to NPI norms as applicable to
investments.

d) In respect of non performing securities, in-
come is not recognized, and provision is
made for depreciation for such securities as
per RBI guidelines. Provision made on non
performing investments is not set off against
the appreciation in respect of other perform-
ing investments.

4.5 Disposal of Investments

a) Profit /Loss on sale of investments under HTM
category is recognized in the Profit and Loss
account based on the weighted average cost/
book value of the related investments and an
amount equivalent to-profit on sale of invest-
ments under   HTM category is appropriated
to Capital Reserve Account.

b) Profit/Loss on sale of investment in AFS/HFT
category is recognized in Profit & Loss Ac-
count.

4.6 Mark to Market (M2M)

As per RBI Circular Vide Ref No. RBI/2013-14/434
RPCD. CO. RRB. BC. No/ 74 /03.05.33/2013-14
dated 07.01.2014; provision has to be made for

Government /Approved Securities
I. Central Govt. Securities
ii. State Govt. Securities

Equity shares

Bonds and Debentures(not in nature of
advances)

Units of Mutual Funds

At market prices /YTM as Published by FBIL on
appropriations yield to maturity basis as per RBI
guidelines.

At market prices, if quoted, otherwise at break up
value of the shares as per latest balance sheet,
otherwise at Rs.1 per company.

At market price, if quoted, or on appropriate yield
to maturity basis not exceeding redemption value
as per RBI/FIBIL guidelines.

As per stock exchange quotation, if quoted; at re-
purchase price & NAV, if unquoted.
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Mark to Market (M2M) losses for the securities un-
der AFS category.

4.7 Investment Fluctuation Reserve

With a view to build up of adequate reserve to pro-
tect against increase in yields in future, Reserve
Bank of India directed all banks (Excluding RRBs)
vide Ref No. RBI /2017-18/147
DBR.No.BP.BC.102/21.04.18/2017-18 dated
02.04.2018 and RBI /2017-18 /200 DBR. No. BP.
BC.113 /21.04.048/2017-18 dated 15.06.2018 (All
Scheduled Commercial Banks) to create an In-
vestment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR), as under

An amount not less than the lower of the following:

a) Net profit on sale of investments during the
year

b) Net profit for the year less mandatory
appropriations

shall be transferred to IFR, until the amount of IFR
is at least 2% of the HFT &  AFS portfolio, on a
continuing basis. Where feasible, this should be
achieved with in a period of 3 years.

5. Loans / Advances and Provisions there on

5.1 Loans and Advances are classified as perform-
ing and non-performing, based on the guidelines
issued by the RBI. Loan assets become non-per-
forming where:

i. In respect of term loan, interest and/or install-
ment of principal remains overdue for a period
of more than 90 days;

ii. In respect of an Overdraft or Cash Credit ad-
vance, the account remains "out of order", i.e. if

the outstanding balance exceeds the sanctioned
limit / drawing power continuously for a period
of 90 days, or if there are no credits continu-
ously for 90 days as on the date of Balance-
sheet, or if the credits are not adequate to cover
the interest due during the same period;

iii. In respect of bills purchased / discounted, the
bill remains overdue for a period of more than
90 days;

iv. In respect of agricultural advances for short du-
ration crops, where the installment of principal
or interest remains overdue for 2 crop seasons;

v. In respect of agricultural advances for long du-
ration crops, where the principal or interest re-
mains overdue for one crop season;

5.2 Non-performing advances are classified into
sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets, based on
the following criteria stipulated by RBI.

i. Sub-standard: A loan asset that has remained
non-performing for a period less than or equal
to 12 months.

ii. Doubtful: A loan asset that has remained in the
sub-standard category for a period of 12
months.

iii. Loss: A loan asset where loss has been identi-
fied but the amount has not been fully written
off

5.3 Provisions are made for NPAs as per the ex-
tant guidelines prescribed by the regulatory authori-
ties, subject to minimum provisions as prescribed
below by the RBI:
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Sub-standard Assets:

I. A general provision 15% on the total outstand-
ing

II. Additional provision of 10% for exposures which
are unsecured  ab-initio or realizable  value of
the security is not more than 10%

Doubtful Assets:

- Secured portion: i) Up to one year - 25%
ii) One to three years - 40%
iii) More than three years - 100%

- Unsecured portion 100%
 Loss assets 100%

Bank proposed to make 100% provision for
balance outstanding under NPA as per RBI
norms, as a matter of prudence and also to
mitigate risks.

5.4. Advances are net of specific loan less provi-
sions and unrealized interest.

5.5. In the case of loan accounts classified as
NPAs, an account may be reclassified as a per-
forming account if it conforms to the guidelines
prescribed by the regulators.

5.6. Amounts recovered against debts written off
in earlier years are recognized as revenue in the
year in which such recoveries are made.

5.7. Unrealized Interest recognized in the previous
year on advances which have become non-per-
forming during the current year, is reversed and
reduced from the current year's interest income.

5.8. Recoveries in NPA accounts are appropriated
in the following order:

a) Charges
b) Unrealized interest and
c) Principal

However, where one-time settlement has been
sanctioned, the repayment received is appropri-
ated in the order of the principal (OTS amount),
expenses and interest.

5.9. In addition to the specific provision on NPAs,
general provisions are also made for standard as-
sets and restructured advances considered as
Standard Assets as per the extant guidelines pre-
scribed by the RBI. The provisions on standard
assets are not reckoned for arriving at net NPAs.
These provisions are reflected in Schedule 5 of
the Balance-sheet under the head "Other Liabili-
ties & Provisions - Others."

6. Sale or Transfer of Assets

6.1 IBPC: The Bank transfers advances through
inter-bank participation with and without risk. In
accordance with the RBI guidelines, in case of
participation with risk, the aggregate amount of
participation issued by the Bank is reduced from
advances and where the Bank is participating, the
aggregate amount of participation is classified un-
der advances. In case of participation without risk,
the aggregate amount of participation issued by
the Bank is classified under borrowings and where
the Bank is participating, the aggregate amount of
participation is shown as due from banks under
advances.

6.2 PSLC: The Bank enters into transactions for
the sale or purchase of Priority Sector Lending
Certificates (PSLCs). In case of sale transaction,
the Bank sells the fulfillment of priority sector obli-
gation and in case of purchase transaction; the
Bank buys the fulfillment of priority sector obliga-
tion through the RBI trading platform. There is no
transfer of risks or loan assets. The premium re-
ceived for the sale of PSLCs is recorded as mis-
cellaneous Income and the premium paid for pur-
chase of the PSLCs is recorded as other Expen-
diture in Profit and Loss Account.
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7. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

7.1. Buildings and other fixed assets are accounted
for on the historical cost basis except and as oth-
erwise stated.

7.2 Lands, which are alienated in favour of Bank
by Government of Andhra Pradesh and others, are
accounted at a nominal value at Rs. 1/- each.

7.3 The buildings constructed, referred to as the
"Praja Bhavanams", with the help and contributions
from the State Government and the Public and used
by the Bank are accounted and classified under
fixed assets at cost. Depreciation is not provided
on such "PRAJA BHAVANAMS" as the Bank did
not incur any cost on its own on the buildings.

7.4 Depreciation on assets is charged on SLM
basis as per the rates stated below.

1 Bank owned (Freehold/ Leasehold) 60 years Straight Line Method 1.58%
Building.

2 Furniture & Fittings, Electrical 10 years Straight Line Method 9.50%
equipments other than Computers.

3 Electronic Equipments. 5 years Straight Line Method 20.00%

4 Other Equipments. 7 years Straight Line Method 13.57%

5 Computers/Laptops/Tablet / 3 years Straight Line Method 33.33%
I Pads/Printers etc., (Under staff
furniture Scheme)

6 Vehicles including Motor Car, 5 years Straight Line Method 20.00%
Motorcycle, Bicycle etc.,

Sl.
No.

Nature of Asset Useful
Life

Method of
Depreciation

Dep Rate
(after considering

residual value)

*Rs. 1/- residual value is fixed for the assets with
estimated useful life of 5 years or less.
*5 % residual value is fixed for all assets except
for those assets with estimated useful life of 5 years
or less.

7.5 Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is
provided on pro rata basis (on the basis of no. of
days) from the date of such addition.

8. Staff Benefits

8.1 Contributions payable to Provident Fund in
terms of the provident fund scheme are
charged to Profit and Loss Account on accrual
basis.

8.2 In respect of liability for gratuity and leave
encashment (which are defined benefits) the
Bank is maintaining Group Gratuity Fund and
Group Leave Encashment Fund with LIC of
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India to meet the future liability. Contributions
for Gratuity and Leave encashment are made
on the basis of actuarial valuation.

8.3 In respect of liability for pension (which is retiral
benefit) the bank is maintaining Pension Fund
with LIC of India, India First Life Insurance Com-
pany Limited and ICICI Prudential Life Insur-
ance Company Limited to meet the future li-
ability.   Contribution for pension fund is made
on the basis of actuarial valuation. Actuarial
Liability is being amortized over a period of 5
years, as per the NABARD guidelines vide Ref
No. NB. DoS. PoL. HO/2523/J-1/2019-20
dated 12.12.2019.

Contributions from the Management to Pen-
sion Fund in terms of Pension Regulations,
2018 are credited to Andhra Pragathi
Grameena Bank (Employees') Pension Fund
Trust with effect from February 2020 in terms
of letter Ref. No. NB.HO.IDD.RRB/1056/316
(PENSION)/2019-20 dated 05.02.2020.

8.4 Contributions payable to National Pension Sys-
tem (NPS) Management, contributions are
charged to Profit and Loss Account on accrual
basis.

8.5  Voluntary Retirement: As per Regulation No.27
of Andhra Pragathi Grameena Bank (Employ-
ees') Pension Regulations - 2018, there is a
provision for the staff members for opting "Pen-
sion on Voluntary Retirement (VR)", which
highlights the following to be eligible for opting/
applying VR among other points:

Employee who has completed qualifying
service of 20 years.

Notice period of not less than 3 months.

The qualifying service of an employee shall

be increased by a period not exceeding 5
years, subject to that the total qualifying
service shall not in any case exceed 33
years and it does not take him beyond the
date of superannuation.

Further, the Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 27
of APGB (Employees') Pension Regulations - 2018
stipulated that the notice of not less than 3 months,
in writing, for voluntary retirement given under Sub-
Regulation (1) shall require acceptance by the Ap-
pointing Authority, provided that where the appoint-
ing authority does not refuse to grant the permis-
sion for retirement before the expiry of the period
specified in the said notice, the retirement shall
become effective from the date of expiry of the said
period.

9. Taxes on Income

9.1 Current tax is determined as per the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and after taking into
account various judicial pronouncements / le-
gal opinions in respect of various claims made
by the Bank. Either the provision (after netting
off advance tax and other tax credits) or advance
tax and other tax credits (after netting off the
provision for tax), as the case may be, is re-
flected under either Other Liabilities or Other
Assets in the Balance Sheet. The liability that
may arise consequent to any additional demand,
which is accepted as payable, in terms of any
proceedings would be provided for in the year
in which such demand is received. Similarly, any
refund of taxes received during any year is rec-
ognized and accounted in the year in which it is
received by netting off against the provision for
tax for that year.

9.2 Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising on
account of timing differences between taxable
and accounting income is recognized, keeping
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in view the consideration of prudence in respect
of deferred tax assets in accordance with the
Accounting Standard 22 issued by ICAI.

10.Net Profit

Net profit is arrived at after accounting for the fol-
lowing under "Provisions & Contingencies" in ad-
dition to the normal expenditures, costs and losses.

Provision for Income tax.

Provision/Write off of Non-Performing Advances
and Investments.

Provision on Standard Assets.

Provision for Rural Advances.

Other usual and necessary provisions.

11.Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent  Assets

11.1. Contingent liabilities are stated in Schedule
12 and the crystallization of these liabilities
depends upon the outcome of court cases /
arbitration / out of court settlement, disposal
of appeals, the amount being called up, terms
of contractual obligation, development and
rising of demand by concerned parties, re-
spectively.  The Bank has made adequate
provisions, wherever required, in compliance
with Accounting Standard 29 prescribed by
the ICAI.  In the opinion of the Management,
the contingent liability has arisen in the nor-
mal course of business and may not crystal-
lize on the Bank and may not have any mate-
rial impact on the revenue.

11.2. Contingent Assets are not recognized in the
financial statements.

12. Impairment of Assets

The carried amount of assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date for any indication of impairment
based on internal or external factor; an impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount.

13. Interim Financial Reporting:

In terms of guidelines of NABARD vide Circular No.
NB. DOS.pol. HO./3477/Poll-J-1/2019-20
DT.02.03.2020 (Circular NO.50/DOS-12/2020) on
disclosure in "Financial Statements - Notes to Ac-
counts", NABRAD has directed the Bank to take
up Quarterly Limited review through their Statutory
Auditors to enable the Statutory Auditor of their
Sponsor Banks to undertake a limited review of the
quarterly audit and facilitate submission of consoli-
dated financial statements to SEBI.

14. Segment Reporting

The Bank's current business activity has only one
primary reportable segment viz. banking including
banking operations. Hence, segment reporting
under AS-17 is not required. The secondary seg-
ment is also not relevant as the bank does not op-
erate in any different geographical segments which
bear varying risks.

15. Related party disclosures:

Chairman and General Managers are deputed by
Sponsor Bank, i.e. Canara Bank are related par-
ties to the Bank. Salaries and Allowances paid to
them are charged to the Profit & Loss account of
the Bank.
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16. The figures mentioned in Balance Sheet, Profit
& Loss Account and Schedules 1 to 17 have been
rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

17. Previous Year's figures have been regrouped /
reclassified/recast wherever necessary to confirm
the current year classification.

18. Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior pe-
riod items and Change in Accounting Policy:

According to the management, there were no ma-
terial prior period Income / Expenditure exceeding
1% of the Gross Total Income / Expenditure during
the year requiring disclosure under AS 5 on Net

Profit or Loss for the period, prior period and extra-
ordinary items and changes in Accounting policies
as prescribed by ICAI.

19. Other Liabilities & Provisions:

In 5th Schedule Other Liabilities and Provisions-
others include an amount of Rs.605.10 Crores
pertaining to provision towards Rural advances.

20.Other Assets:

In 11th Schedule Other Assets- Others include an
amount of Rs.268.69 Crores pertaining to Interest
Subvention Receivable.

B) NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. Regulatory Capital

a. Composition of Regulatory Capital

i) CommonEquity Tier 1 capital
(CET 1) / Paid up share capital and reserves
(net of deductions, if any) 41.34 41.24

ii) Additional Tier1 capital/ Other Tier1 capital 3702.92 3107.76

iii) Tier1 capital (i+ii) 3744.26 3149.00

iv) Tier2 capital 253.11 251.35

v) Total  capital (Tier1+Tier2) 3997.37 3400.35

vi) Total Risk WeightedAssets(RWAs) 16728.63 16588.26

vii) CET1 Ratio (CET1 as a percentage of RWAs) 0.25 0.25

viii) Tier1 Ratio
(Tier1capital as a percentage of RWAs) 22.38 18.98

ix) Tier2 Ratio
(Tier2 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 1.51 1.52

x) Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio
(CRAR) (Total Capital as a percentage of RWAs) 23.90 20.50

Sl. No. Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

(Rs. in Crore)
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b. Draw down from Reserve:
The Bank has not drawn any amount from Reserves

2. Asset Liability Management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

(Rs. in Crore)

xi) Percentage of the share holding of
a)   Government of India 50% 50%
b)   State Government (Andhra Pradesh) 15% 15%
c)   Sponsor Bank 35% 35%

xii) Amount of paid-upequity capital raised during the year 0 0

xiii) Amount of non-equityTier1capital raised during the year,
of which: Give list as per instrument type (perpetual
non-cumulative preference shares, perpetual debt 0 0
instruments, etc.). Commercial banks (excluding RRBs)
shall also specify ifthe instruments are BaselIIor BaselIII
compliant.

xiv) Amount of Tier2 capital raised during the year,
of which: Give list as per instrument type (perpetual
non-cumulative preference shares, perpetual debt 0 0
instruments,etc.). Commercial banks (excluding RRBs)
shall also specify if the instruments are BaselII or
BaselIII compliant.

Sl. No. Particulars 2022-23 2021-2022

Deposits 7311.23 0.07 115.03 389.16 651.52 629.60 2879.74 3723.34 3461.70 353.13 277.25 19791.77

Advances 1696.44 63.50 74.52 442.88 2249.15 2306.87 2876.30 4364.89 6206.32 591.94 990.79 21863.60

Investments 0.00 0.00 3.92 5.79 10.07 10.00 32.18 670.07 874.65 578.70 1572.85 3758.23

Borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 161.83 551.84 2266.72 1353.75 265.18 0.15 4599.47

Foreign Currency
assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Foreign Currency
liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Particulars Day1

As on 31.03.2023

2
to

7days

8 to 14
days

15
to 30
Days

31
days
to 2

months

Over 2
Months
and up

to 3
months

Over3
months

and upto
6

Months

Over 6
months

and upto
1year

Over1
year
and
upto

3 years

Over
3 years
andup

to 5
years

Over
5

years
Total
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Deposits 135.26 270.44 361.20 423.44 1095.46 1146.60 2726.56 4018.75 8157.94 433.61 358.27 19127.53

Advances 1533.52 49.07 64.25 447.06 2067.14 2258.91 2845.43 3754.01 5547.67 625.71 936.65 20129.42

Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 27.00 110.06 75.15 215.75 206.22 1647.34 550.05 1431.31 4262.88

Borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1567.54 1564.13 1953.04 485.67 0.00 5570.38

Foreign Currency
assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Foreign Currency
liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Particulars Day1

As on 31.03.2022

2
to

7days

8 to 14
days

15
to 30
Days

31
days
to 2

months

Over 2
Months
and up

to 3
months

Over3
months

and upto
6

Months

Over 6
months

and upto
1year

Over1
year
and
upto

3 years

Over
3 years
andup

to 5
years

Over
5

years
Total

3. Investments

a. Composition of Investment Portfolio as at 31.03.2023
(Rs. in Crores)

Held to Maturity
Gross 2346.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 2346.48
Less:Provision
for non-performing
investments (NPI) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 2346.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 2346.48

Available for Sale
Gross 1371.46 0.00 0.50 40.29 1412.25
Less:Provision for
depreciation and
NPI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 1371.46 0.00 0.50 40.29 1412.25

Held for Trading

Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Government
Securities

Investments in India

Total
investments

in India

Other
Approved
Securities

Shares
Debentures

and
Bonds

Subsidiaries
and/or joint
ventures

Others
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b. Composition of Investment Portfolio as at 31.03.2022
(Rs. in Crores)

Held to Maturity
Gross 2025.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 2025.08
Less:Provision for
non-performing
investments (NPI) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 2025.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 2025.08

Available for Sale
Gross 2197.52 0.00 0.50 40.29 2238.31
Less:Provision for
depreciation
and NPI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 2197.52 0.00 0.50 40.29 2238.31

Government
Securities

Investments in India

Total
investments

in India

Other
Approved
Securities

Shares
Debentures

and
Bonds

Subsidiaries
and/or joint
ventures

Others

Less:Provision for
depreciation
and NPI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Investments 3717.94 0.00 0.50 40.29 3758.73
Less:Provision for
non-performing
investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less:Provision for
depreciation
and NPI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 3717.94 0.00 0.50 40.29 3758.73

Government
Securities

Investments in India

Total
investments

in India

Other
Approved
Securities

Shares
Debentures

and
Bonds

Subsidiaries
and/or joint
ventures

Others
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Held for Trading
Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less:Provision for
depreciation
and NPI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Investments 4222.60 0.00 0.50 40.29 4263.39
Less:Provision for
non-performing
investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less:Provision for
depreciation
and NPI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net 4222.60 0.00 0.50 40.29 4263.39

Government
Securities

Investments in India

Total
investments

in India

Other
Approved
Securities

Shares
Debentures

and
Bonds

Subsidiaries
and/or joint
ventures

Others

c. Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve
(Rs. in Crores)

i) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

a. Opening balance 0.00 0.00

b. Add: Provisions made during the year 0.00 0.00

c. Less: Write off / write back of excess provisions during the year 0.00 0.00

d. Closing balance 0.00 0.00

ii) Movement of Investment Fluctuation Reserve

a. Opening balance 44.00 41.40

b. Add: Amount transferred during the year 0.00 2.60

c. Less: Drawdown 0.00 0.00

d. Closing balance 44.00 44.00

iii) Closing balance in IFR as a percentage of closing balance of
     investments in AFS and HFT/Current category 2.00% 2.00%

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
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d. Sale and transfers to/from HTM category

1. Bank has not sold securities under HTM category in the current Financial Year.
2. During the current Financial Year, 15 securities of book value of Rs.787.95 crores were shifted from

AFS to HTM category.

e. Non-SLR investment portfolio

Non-performing non-SLR investments
(Rs. in crore)

a) Opening balance 0.00 0.00

b) Additions during the year since 1st April 0.00 0.00

c) Reductions during the above period 0.00 0.00

d) Closing balance 0.00 0.00

e) Total provisions held 0.00 0.00

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22Sl.No.

f. Issuer composition of non-SLR investments
(Rs. in crore)

Extent of
Extent of 'below Extent of Extent of

Sl No                Issuer Amount Private investment 'Unrated' 'Unlisted'
Placement grade' securities Securities

securities

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

a ) P S U s 3 0 . 2 2 3 0 . 2 2 2 0 . 0 0 2 0 . 0 0 Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l

b ) FIs 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l
c ) Banks 0 . 5 0 0 . 5 0 0 . 5 0 0 . 5 0 Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l

d ) Private Corporates 1 0 . 0 7 1 0 . 0 7 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l

e ) Subsidiaries /
Joint Ventures 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l

f ) O the rs 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l

g ) Provision held towards
deprec iat ion 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 . 0 0 Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l Ni l

Total 40.79 40.79 20.50 20.50 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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g. Repo transactions (in face value terms)
(Rs. in Lakhs)

i) Securities sold
under repo

a) Government securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

b) Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) Any other securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

ii) Securities purchased
under reverse repo

a) Government securities 5.00 700.00 10.31 700.00

b) Corporate debt securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Any other securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Minimum
outstanding

during the year

Maximum
outstanding

during the year

Daily average
outstanding

during the year

Outstand-
ing as on
March 31

4. Asset quality

a. Classification of advances and provisions held
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gross Standard
Advances and NPAs
Opening Balance 19833.05 100.13 148.26 47.99 296.38 20129.43
Add:
Additions during 187.64 19115.35
the year

Less:
Reductions 188.76 19381.18
during the year

Closing balance 21568.86 87.30 160.31 47.65 295.26 19863.60
Reductions in Gross
NPAs due to:
i) Upgradation 91.84

Total
Standard
Advances

Total

Standard Non-Performing

Sub-
standard Doubtful Loss

Total Non-
Performing
Advances
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Total
Standard
Advances

Total

Standard Non-Performing

Sub-
standard Doubtful Loss

Total Non-
Performing
Advances

ii) Recoveries
(excluding recoveries
from upgraded 75.72
accounts)

iii)Technical/
Prudential Write-offs 0.00

iv) Write-offs other
than those under (iii) 21.20
above

Provisions
(excluding Floating
Provisions)

Opening balance of
provisions held 56.54 100.13 148.26 47.99 315.81 372.35

Add: Fresh provisions
madeduring theyear 13.30

Less: Excess
provision reversed/
Write-off loans 21.20

Closing balance of
provisions held 61.00 87.00 160.31 47.65 307.91 368.91

Net NPAs

Opening Balance 0

Add: Fresh additions
during theyear 0

Less: Reductions
during the year 0

Closing Balance 0
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Total
Standard
Advances

Total

Standard Non-Performing

Sub-
standard Doubtful Loss

Total Non-
Performing
Advances

Floating Provisions 0

Opening Balance 0

Add: Additional
provisions made
during the year 0

Less: Amount drawn
down during the year 0

Closing balance of
floating provisions 0

Technical write-offs
and the recoveries
made thereon

Opening balance of
Technical/ Prudential
written-off accounts 41.85

Add:Technical/
Prudential write-offs
during the year 0.00

Less:Recoveries
made from previously
technical/prudential
written-off 0.05
accounts during
the year

Closing balance 41.80

b. Ratios

Gross NPA to Gross Advances 1.49 1.47

Net NPA to Net Advances 0.00 0.00

Provision coverage ratio 104.28 106.56

Ratios (in percent) 2022-23 2021-22
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c. Sector-wise Advances and Gross NPAs
(Rs. in Crore)

d. Overseas assets, NPAs and revenue

Total Assets 0.00 0.00

Total NPAs 0.00 0.00

Total Revenue 0.00 0.00

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Sl.
No. Description

i) Priority Sector
17922.60 291.18 1.62% 18806.04 292.08 1.55%

a) Agriculture and allied
activities 14898.81 216.80 1.46% 15647.14 215.99 1.38%

b) Advances to industries
sector eligible as priority
sector lending 13.41 0.55 4.10% 8.24 0.54 6.55%

c) Services 1117.15 56.29 5.04% 988.81 33.3 3.37%

d) Personal loans 1893.23 17.54 0.93% 2161.85 42.25 1.95%

Sub total (i) 17922.60 291.18 1.62% 18806.04 292.08 1.55%

ii) Non-priority Sector
1941.00 4.08 0.21% 1323.39 4.3 0.32%

a) Agriculture and allied
activities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Industry 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Personal loans 1941.00 4.08 0.21% 1323.39 4.3 0.32%

Sub-total (ii) 1941.00 4.08 0.21% 1323.39 4.3 0.32%

Total (i+ ii) 19863.60 295.26 1.49% 20129.43 296.14 1.47%

Outstand-
ing Total
Advances

2022-23 2021-22

Gross
NPAs

Percentage
of Gross
NPAs to
Total Ad-
vances in
that sector

Outstand-
ing Total
Advances

Gross
NPAs

Percentage
of Gross
NPAs to
Total Ad-
vances in
that sector
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e. Particulars of resolution plan and restructuring

Details of accounts subjected to restructuring
(Rs. in crore)

Agriculture
and allied
activities

2022-23

Number of 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 8 6 0 9 2 0 5 2 0 5
bor rowers

G r o s s
Standard Amoun t 0 0 . 4 0 0 0 0 1 . 9 0 0 0 . 9 3 3 . 2 3 3 . 2 3

( crore)

Provis ion
he ld 0 0 . 0 4 0 0 0 0 . 1 9 0 0 . 0 9 0 . 3 2 0 . 3 2
( crore)
Number of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
bor rowers

Sub-standard G r o s s
Amoun t 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
( crore)
Provis ion
he ld 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
( crore)
Number of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
bor rowers

Doubtful G r o s s
Amoun t 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
( crore)
Provis ion
he ld 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
( crore)
Number of 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 8 6 0 9 0 2 0 5
bor rowers

Total G r o s s
Amoun t 0 0 . 4 0 0 0 0 1 . 9 0 0 0 . 9 3 0 3 . 2 3
( crore)
Provis ion
he ld 0 0 . 0 4 0 0 0 0 . 1 9 0 0 . 0 9 0 0 . 3 2
( crore)

Corporates
(excluding

MSME)

Micro, Small
and Medium
Enterprises

(MSME)

Retail
(excluding
agriculture
and MSME)

Total

2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
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(all amounts in Rs.crore)

No:of accounts

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans
transferred

Weighted average residual tenor of the
loans transferred

Net book value of loans transferred
(at the time of transfer)

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in
respect of accounts transferred in ear-
lier years

NIL

To ARCs To other transferees
(please specify)

To permitted
transferees

g. Details of loans acquired during the year

(all amounts in Rs.crore)

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans
acquired

Aggregate consideration paid

Weighted average residualtenor of loans
acquired

NIL

From ARCs

From SCBs, RRBs, UCBs,
St CBs, DCCBs, AIFIs, SFBs and

NBFCs including Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs)

f. Disclosure of transfer of loan exposures

In the case of stressed loans transferred or acquired, the following disclosures should be made:

Details of stressed loans transferred during the year (to be made separately for loans classified
as NPA and SMA)
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h. Fraud accounts

Banks shall make disclose details on the number and amount of frauds as well as the provisioning
thereon as per template given below.

(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

Number of frauds reported 2 2

Amount involved in fraud (  crore) 0.22 0.48

Amount of provision made for such frauds (  crore) 0.20 0.12

Amount of Unamortised provision debited from 'other reserves' as
at the end of the year (  crore) 0.00 0.00

5. Exposures

a. Exposure to real estate sector
(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

i) Direct exposure

a) Residential Mortgages-

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is orwill be 598.03 507.29
occupied by the borrower or that is rented.

Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector advances shall be
shown separately. Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.

b) Commercial Real Estate-
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, 438.21 383.70
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily residential

buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or ware house
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;

Category
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2022-23 2021-22

c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized 20.44 23.44
exposures-

i.  Residential
ii. Commercial RealEstate 0.00 0.00

ii) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and
 Housing Finance Companies. 0.00 0.00

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 618.47 530.73

b. Exposure to capital market
(Rs. in crore)

Current Year

i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convert-
ible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the
corpus of which is not exclusively invested incorporate debt;

ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securi-
ties or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible de-
bentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds;

iii) Advances for anyother purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / con-
vertible debentures /units of equity oriented mutual funds does
not fully cover the advances;

Particulars PreviousYear

0.50

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.50

0.00

0.00

0.00
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Current YearParticulars PreviousYear

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guaran-
tees issued on behalf of stock brokers and market makers;

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or onclean basis for meet-
ing promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in an-
ticipation of raising resources;

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of
primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible de-
bentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds;

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;

x) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and un-
registered)

Total exposure to capital market

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

c. Risk category-wise country exposure
(Rs. in crore)

Risk Category

Insignificant

Low

Moderately Low

Moderate

Moderately High

High

Very High

Total

NIL

Provision held
as at March,22

Exposure (net)
as at March,22

Provision
held as at
March,23

Exposure (net)
as at March,23
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d. Unsecured advances

Banks shall disclose the total amount of advances for which intangible securities such as charge over
the rights, licenses, authority, etc. have been taken as also the estimated value of such intangible collateral
as per the following format.

(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

Total unsecured advances of the bank 2150.09 4771.54

Out of the above, amount of advances for which intangible
securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc.
have been taken 0.00 0.00

Estimated value of such intangible securities 0.00 0.00

Particulars

e. Factoring exposures

Factoring exposures shall be separately disclosed.

6. Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

a. Concentration of deposits
(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

Total deposits of the twenty largest depositors 669.94 2185.58

Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total
deposits of the bank 3.38% 11.38%

Particulars

b.  Concentration of advances
(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

Total advances to the twenty largest borrowers 25.49 36.64

Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total
advances of the bank 0.12% 0.18%

Particulars
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c. Concentration of exposures
(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

Total exposure to the twenty largest borrowers/customers 2339.99 2185.58

Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest borrowers/
customers to the total exposure of the bank on borrowers/   5.62% 5.50%
customers

Particulars

d.Concentration of NPAs
(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

Total Exposure to the top twenty NPA accounts 2.80 2.69

Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest NPA exposure
to total Gross NPAs. 0.95% 0.91%

Particulars

7. Derivatives

a. Forward rate agreement / Interest rate swap
                                                                 (Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

i) The notional principal of swap agreements

ii) Losses which would be incurred if counter parties failed to
fulfil their obligations under the agreements

iii) Collateral required by the bank up onentering into swaps NIL NIL

iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

v) The fair value of the swap book

Particulars



123

ANDHRA PRAGATHI GRAMEENA BANK
Annual Report

2022 - 202317th

b. Exchange traded interest rate derivatives
(Rs. in crore)

Risk exposure in derivatives

i) Qualitative disclosures
Bank has not entered into any transactions in derivatives in the current and previous years.

ii) Quantitative disclosures
Bank has not entered into any transactions in derivatives in the current and previous years.

c. Credit default swaps
Not Applicable

8.Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund)
(Rs. in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

 i) Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 31.93 23.01

 ii) Add: Amounts transferred to DEA Fund during the year 15.65 9.32

 iii) Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEA Fund towards claims 0.44 0.40

 iv) Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEA  Fund 47.14 31.93

ParticularsSl.No.

2022-23 2021-22

  i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest
rate derivatives undertaken during the year (instrumentwise) 0.00 0.00

  ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest
rate derivatives outstanding as on 31st March, 2022 0.00 0.00
(instrumentwise)

  iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives outstanding and not 'highly effective' 0.00 0.00
(instrument wise)

  iv) Mark to market value of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives outstanding and not 'highly effective' 0.00 0.00
(instrumentwise)

ParticularsSl.No.
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9. Disclosure of complaints

a. Summary information on complaints received by the bank from customers and from the
Offices of Ombudsman

2022-23 2021-22ParticularsSl.No.

Complaints received by the bank from its customers

1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 1 3

2 Number of complaints received during the year 61 58

3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 60 61

3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the bank 0 0

4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 2 0

Maintainable complaints received by the bank from Office of Ombudsman

5 Number of maintainable complaints received by
the bank from Office of Ombudsman 69 71

5.1. Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favor of the
bank by Office of Ombudsman 69 71

 5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through
conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of
Ombudsman 0 0

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of
Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the bank 0 0

6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated
time (other than those appealed) 0 0

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated
Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously Banking Ombudsman Scheme, 2006) and covered within the
ambit of the Scheme..
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Number of
complaints
pending at
the begin-
ning of the

year

Grounds of complaints,
(i.e. complaints relating to)

% increase/
decrease in the

number of
complaints

 received over
the previous

year

Number of
com-

plaints
pending

at the end
of the
year

number of
com-

plaints
pending

beyond 30
days

b. Top five grounds of complaints received by the bank from customers

Number of
complaints
received

during the
year

1 2 3 4 5 6

2022-2023

Delay/non sanctioning/closure
of loans 0 10 -41.18% - -

Failure of ATM , Debit card
and PoS transactions 0 1 -80.00% - -

Rude behavior, non-
co-operation by employees 0 10 100.00% - -

Non furnishing of statement
of accounts debit/credit
advices, delay in returning
pass books, mistakes in
pass books etc., 0 1 - - -

Alleged wrongful withdrawal
from the accounts 0 4 100.00% - -

Others 1 35 20.69% - -

Total 1 61 5.17% Nil Nil

Previous Year (2021-22)

Delay/non sanctioning/closure
of loans 0 17 13.30% - -

Failure of ATM , Debit card
and PoS transactions 0 5 150% - -

Rude behavior, non-
co-operation by employees 2 5 -37.50% - -
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Number of
complaints
pending at
the begin-
ning of the

year

Grounds of complaints,
(i.e. complaints relating to)

% increase/
decrease in the

number of
complaints

 received over
the previous

year

Number of
com-

plaints
pending

at the end
of the
year

number of
com-

plaints
pending

beyond 30
days

Number of
complaints
received

during the
year

1 2 3 4 5 6

Non furnishing of statement
of accounts debit/credit
advices, delay in returning
pass books, mistakes in
pass books etc., 0 0 Nil - -

Alleged wrongful withdrawal
from the accounts 0 2 Nil - -

Others 1 29 -45.28% - -

Total 3 58 -27.50% Nil Nil

10. Disclosure of penalties imposed by the Reserve Bank of India

PenaltiesPenalties imposed by the Reserve Bank of India under the provisions of

(i) Banking Regulation Act, 1949 Nil

(ii) Payment and Settlement Systems Act, 2007 Nil

(iii) Government Securities Act, 2006 (for bouncing of SGL) Nil

(iv) REPO- number of instances of default as well as the quantum of penalty paid
to the Reserve Bank of India Nil

Sl.No.

11. Reconciliation

Reconciliations of outstanding entries in Inter
Office Accounts, Drafts accounts, ATM Cash Bal-
ances, ATM Transactions of customers of other
banks, Transactions of Bank's customers at other
bank ATMs, are being done on an ongoing basis
and in the opinion of management no material out-
come is expected on profit and loss account.

12. Accounting for the effects of changes in
Foreign Exchange rates

The Bank has not entered into any transaction in
any convertible foreign currency and hence the dis-
closure in terms of the Accounting Standard 11
(AS11) dealing with the effects of changes in for-
eign exchange rates is not relevant to the bank for
the year.
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13. Impairment of Assets

In the opinion of the management, there is no im-
pairment of its assets as on 31.03.2023 requiring
recognition in terms of Accounting Standard 28
prescribed by ICAI.

14.Related Party transactions

 a. Key Management Personnel

1. Sri Rakesh Kashyap, Chairman (From
30.11.2020 to 31.03.2023).

2. Sri R Giri, General Manager (From 01.04.2022
to 31.03.2023)

3. Sri B.S. Ananthapadmanabha Rao, General
Manager (From16.06.2020 to 31.03.2023).

4. Sri K. Vijaya Bhaskar, General Manager (From
26.04.2021 to 31.03.2023).

5. Sri M. Jagadeeswara Rao, General Manager
(From 03-05-2021 to 31.03.2023).

6. Sri P R Padgetwar, General Manager (From
01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023).

7. Sri L. Marthanda Choudary, Chief Compliance
Officer (From 05.07.2021 to 31.03.2023).

b. Disclosures on remuneration

The particulars of Salary and other allowances paid
to the Chairman and General Managers are fur-
nished hereunder.

                (Rs. in crore)

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Particulars

Salary, emoluments and benefits 1.79 1.19

For the year ended
31st March 2022

Since the key Management personnel are from
Sponsor Bank i.e. Canara Bank, provision for ter-
minal benefits is not included.

c. Intra-group exposures

The particulars of transactions with the related
parties (Sponsor Bank i.e., Canara Bank) are as
follows:

(Rs.in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

Deposits received outstanding at the year end 0 0

Deposits made outstanding at the year end including interest 0.36 0.34
Investments outstanding at the year end* 0.50 0.50

Advances made outstanding at the year end 0 0

Advances received outstanding at the year end 0 0

Interbank participation Canara Bank 0 0

Interest Paid 0.00 0.10
Interest Received 0.00 4.64

Inter Bank Participation by the Bank in Canara Bank 0 0

Particulars
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* On amalgamation of Syndicate Bank with
Canara Bank on 01.04.2020 the existing shares
4,72,400 of Syndicate Bank was converted to
74,639 shares of Canara Bank. Since then the
revaluation was not done.

15. Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior pe-
riod items and Change in Accounting Policy:

According to the management, there were no ma-

terial prior period Income / Expenditure exceeding
1% of the Gross Total Income / Expenditure during
the year requiring disclosure under AS 5 on Net
Profit or Loss for the period, prior period and extra-
ordinary items and changes in Accounting policies
as prescribed by ICAI.

16. Other Disclosures

A. Business Ratios

2022-23 2021-22

i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 8.23% 8.05%

ii) Non-interest income as a percentage to Working Funds 1.58% 1.63 %

iii) Cost of Deposits 4.66% 4.70%

iv) Net Interest Margin 4.63% 4.33%

v) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 3.67% 2.90%

vi) Return on Assets 2.04% 1.49%
vii) Business (deposits plus advances) per employee (in  crore) 14.55 14.16

viii) Profit per employee (in  crore) 0.22 0.15

Particulars

B. Bancassurance business

The details of fees / brokerage earned in respect
of insurance broking, agency and bancassurance

business undertaken by them shall be disclosed
for both the current year and previous year.

             (Rs.in crore)

C. Marketing and distribution

Banks shall disclose the details of fees/remunera-
tion received in respect of the marketing and dis-

tribution function (excluding bancassurance busi-
ness) undertaken by them.

               (Rs.in crore)

2022-23 2021-22

4.84 6.68

2022-23 2021-22

0.00 0.00

D.Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs)

The bank has sold and purchased following prior-
ity sector advances through Priority sector lending

certificate (PSLC) in RBI's e-Kuber platform dur-
ing the Financial Year 2022-23 on various dates
and booked



129

ANDHRA PRAGATHI GRAMEENA BANK
Annual Report

2022 - 202317th

The summary of advances sold and bought through PSLC is furnished under:
(Rs. in Crores)

PSLC Purchased Net Profit/Loss
during

the Year

9150.00 157.12 6900.00 18.18 138.94

PSLC SOLD

Total
Sold

Premium
Received

Total
Purchased

Premium
paid

E. Provisions and Contingencies
(Rs. in Crores)

2022-23 2021-22

1 Provisions for NPI 0.00 0.00

2 Provision towards NPA 13.31 49.55

3 General Provision on Standard Assets 4.47 6.94

4 Provision for Frauds 0.00 0.00

5 Provision made towards Income tax 199.19 156.86

6 Provision for Deferred Tax 0.10 0.15

7 Provision for Rural  Advances 260.00 180.00

8 Provision for Contingencies 0.00 0.00

477.07 393.50

ParticularsSl.No.

F. Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium
(Rs. in Crores)

2022-23 2021-22

i) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 22.47 20.79

ii) Arrears in payment of DICGC premium 0.00 0.00

ParticularsSl.No.

G. Amortization of expenditure on account of
enhancement in family pension of employees
of banks

i. Pension Scheme - 2018
Pursuant to the order dated 25-04-2018 of the
Hon'ble Supreme Court in SLP (C) - 39288/2012

regarding grant of Pension to the employees of
RRBs and as per the directions given by the De-
partment of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance,
Government of India vide their letter dt.23-10-2018
communicating the approval of Model RRB (Offic-
ers' and Employees') Service (Amendment) Regu-
lations, 2018 and Model Regional Rural Bank
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(Employees') Pension Regulations, 2018 through
NABARD and also as per the Official Gazette No-
tification dt.11-12-2018 of APGB (Employees') Pen-
sion Regulations - 2018  by the Govt. of India, the
Bank has implemented the Pension Scheme --
2018 effective from 01-04-2018, with the  approval
of the Board of Directors during the  meeting held
on 16-10-2018.

A pension fund trust has been created and neces-
sary approval from Principal Commissioner of In-
come Tax, Kurnool obtained vide No. F. No. CIT/
KNL/139/KDP-1 dated 22.02.2019.

As per Regulation 10 of Andhra Pragathi Grameena
Bank (Employees') Pension Regulations, 2018
"The Bank shall cause an investigation to be made
by an actuary into the financial condition of the Fund
every financial year on the 31st day of March, and
make such additional annual contributions to the
Fund as may be required to secure payment of
the benefits under these regulations".

The Bank has been contributing to pension fund
towards pension liability as per the actuarial valua-
tions as at 31st March every year. Accordingly, the
Bank has obtained Actuarial Valuation of Pension
Fund from Life Insurance Corporation of India as
of 31.03.2023 and the liability assessed is
Rs.1243.28 crores. Accordingly, Bank has contrib-
uted the gap of Rs.132.66 crores during the FY
2022-23.

 ii.Family Pension:

Consequent to the 11th Bipartite settlement and
joint note dated November 11, 2020 and NABARD
vide Ref: NB.HO.IDD.RRB/1045/316(Pay & Allow-
ances)/2022-23, Dt 30.12.2022 has communicated
the DFS, Ministry of Finance GOI, approval for pay-
ment of Family Pension in respect of RRBs at a
uniform rate of 30% of the Pay of the deceased

employees of RRBs without any ceiling on Family
pension with effect from 01.04.2021. Accordingly,
Bank has implemented the revised family pension
at a uniform rate of 30% of Pay from the month of
January 2023. The arrears were paid for a period
of 21 months i.e from 01.04.2021 to 31.12.2022.

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group
Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeding the limits pre-
scribed by RBI during the year 2022-23

Single Borrower Limit (SBL)
exceeded Nil
Group Borrower Limit (GBL)
exceeded Nil

H. Employee Benefits

i. Group Gratuity Fund:

The Bank has opted for Group Gratuity Scheme
with LIC of India.

As per the requirement, in terms of the AS-15 deal-
ing with Employee Benefits and as determined by
the Consulting Actuary an amount of Rs.1179379
(Previous year Rs. 1271373) is to be maintained
in Gratuity Fund with LIC of India towards present
value of past service Gratuity.   Further the value of
funded assets at the year-end is Rs. 1188610
(Previous Year Rs. 1061284).

The table showing the actuarial valuations done
by the Consulting Actuary for the gratuity payment
obligations as computed under AS 15 is given be-
low:
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(Rs. in 000s)

1 Assumption

Discount Rate 7.00% 7.00%

Salary Escalation 8.00% 8.00%

2 Table Showing changes in present value of obligation

Present value of obligations as at beginning of year 1210969 1271373

Interest cost 84767 88996

Current Service Cost 68217 57279

Benefits Paid (225710) (166850)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 133130 71418

Present value of obligations as at end of year 1271373 1179379

3 Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 1203536 1061284

Expected return on plan assets 79431 84111

Contributions 4027 210065

Benefits Paid (225710) 166850

Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan assets NIL NIL

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 1061284 1188610

4 Net asset/ Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Defined benefit of obligations as at the end of year 1271373 1179379

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 1061284 1188610

Net asset/(liability) recognized in balance sheet (210089)       (9231)

Expenses Recognized in statement of Profit and loss

5 Current Service cost 68217 57278

Interest Cost 84767 88996

Expected return on plan assets (79431) (84111)

Net Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 133130 71418

Past service cost
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss 206683 9254

As on
31.03.2022

As on
31.03.2023
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ii. Group Leave Encashment:

The Bank has opted for Group Leave Encashment
scheme with LIC of India for permanent staff mem-
bers of the Bank w. e. f. 01.03.2010.

As per the requirement in terms of the AS-15 deal-
ing with Employee Benefits and as determined by
the Consulting Actuary an amount of Rs. 1141233
(Previous year Rs. 1027406) is to be maintained

in Leave Encashment Fund with LIC of India to-
wards present value of past services. Further the
value of funded assets is at Rs.1150793 (Previ-
ous Year Rs. 732438).

The Table containing the Actuarial Valuations com-
puted by the Consulting Actuary for the Group Leave
Encashment Scheme in accordance with AS 15
is as under:

(Rs. in 000s)

1 Assumption

Discount Rate 7.00% 7.00%

Salary Escalation 8.00% 8.00%

2 Table Showing changes in present value of obligation

Present value of obligations as at beginning of year 806184 1027406

Interest cost 56433 71918

Current Service Cost 20190 24356

Benefits Paid (121241) (73773)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 265841 91326

Present value of obligations as at end of year 1027406 1141233

3 Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 746360 732473

Expected return on plan assets 50139 74620

Contributions 57179 417473

Benefits Paid (121241) (73773)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan assets NIL NIL

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 732473 1150793

As on
31.03.2022

As on
31.03.2023
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4 The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet

Present value of obligations as at the end of year 1027406 1141233

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 732438 1150793

Net (asset)/liability recognized in balance sheet (294968) (9560)

5 Expenses Recognized in statement of Profit and loss

Current Service cost 20190 24356

Interest Cost 56433 71918

Expected return on plan assets (50139) (74620)

Net Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 265841 91325

Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss 292325 112980

The estimates of future salary increase considered
in actuarial valuation taken into account of infla-
tion, seniority promotion and other relevant factors
such as supply and demand in employment mar-
ket.

iii. Pension Scheme - 2018

Pursuant to the order dated 25-04-2018 of the
Hon'ble Supreme Court in SLP (C) - 39288/2012
regarding grant of Pension to the employees of
RRBs and as per the directions given by the De-
partment of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance,
Government of India vide their letter dt.23-10-2018
communicating the approval of Model RRB (Offic-
ers' and Employees') Service (Amendment) Regu-
lations, 2018 and Model Regional Rural Bank (Em-
ployees') Pension Regulations, 2018 through
NABARD and also as per the Official Gazette No-
tification dt.11-12-2018 of APGB (Employees') Pen-
sion Regulations - 2018  by the Govt. of India, the

Bank has implemented the Pension Scheme --
2018 effective from 01-04-2018, with the  approval
of the Board of Directors during the  meeting held
on 16-10-2018.

A pension fund trust has been created and neces-
sary approval from Principal Commissioner of In-
come Tax, Kurnool obtained vide No. F. No. CIT/
KNL/139/KDP-1 dated 22.02.2019.

As per Regulation 10 of Andhra Pragathi Grameena
Bank (Employees') Pension Regulations, 2018
"The Bank shall cause an investigation to be made
by an actuary into the financial condition of the Fund
every financial year on the 31st day of March, and
make such additional annual contributions to the
Fund as may be required to secure payment of
the benefits under these regulations".

The Bank has been contributing to the pension fund
towards pension liability as per the actuarial valua-

As on
31.03.2022

As on
31.03.2023
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tions as at 31st March every year. Accordingly, the
Bank has obtained an Actuarial Valuation of Pen-
sion Fund from Trans Value Consultants as of
31.03.2023 and the liability assessed is Rs.1243.28
crores.  Accordingly, Bank has contributed the gap
of Rs.132.66 crores during the FY 2022-23.

iv. Voluntary Retirement

The Bank had received 24 applications from the
staff members of different cadres opting/applying
for voluntary retirement from the services of the
Bank and the same are placed before the Compe-
tent Authority for according in principle permission
to process the applications.  As such, out of the 24
applications received, the Bank has accepted the
voluntary retirement requests pertaining to 11 staff
members, those who have fulfilled the eligibility
criteria, and relieved them from the services of the
Bank on different occasions.  Out of the 24 received
applications, 9 applications were not accepted for
various reasons and 4 applications are under pro-
cess as on 31-03-2023.

There is no cost to the Bank on account of imple-
menting Voluntary Retirement.

v. Provident Fund

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Bank has
implemented Provident Fund Scheme to employ-
ees as per Government of India directions vide no
F.No.8/20/2010-RRB dated 23.10.2018.  Provident
Fund Trust has been created and obtained neces-
sary approval from the Principal Commissioner of
Income Tax, Tirupathi Charge, Tirupathi vide
Ref.No. F.No.Approval/Pr.CIT/TPT/2020-21 dated:
11.09.2020.  As per the policy, Bank has remitted
members contribution of Rs 5.00 Crores towards
Provident Fund Trust, on an accrual basis which
is charged to the Profit & Loss account.

vi.  National Pension System (NPS)

The Bank has implemented the National Pension
System (NPS), in terms of Pension Regulations,
2018 as per Government of India directions vide
no F. No.8/20/2010-RRB dated 23.10.2018 and
accordingly paid an amount of Rs.13.00 Crore to
National Pension System and the same is charged
to Profit & Loss Account.

I. Interim Financial Reporting:

Bank has undertaken Quarterly Limited review of
Financial Results through Statutory Central Audi-
tors for the quarters ended June 2022, Septem-
ber'2022 and December'2022.
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Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx
(S. Ravi Kumar) (K. Vijaya Bhaskar)
Chief Manager General Manager

Sd/- xx xx
(Rakesh Kashyap)

Chairman

Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx Sd/- xx xx
(Roopa VC) (Dr KVS Prasad)  (K KALYANI) (A MURALIKRISHNA)

Director  Director Director Director

 In terms of our report of even date attached.

Place: KADAPA For CHOWDARY & RAO.,
Date: 25 .04.2023 CHARTERED  ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No. 000656S

Sd/- xx xx
(Sunil Kumar) PARTNER

                                                                                                                   ICAI Membership 217061
                UDIN:23217061BGQFNN9191

DetailsSl.
No.

Particulars

a No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year NIL

b No. of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen during the year. NIL

c No. of Awards implemented during the year NIL

d No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of the year. NIL

J. Award passed by the Banking Ombudsman
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